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Five Years Financial Summary

hFMHHE

Year ended 31 December

HE+ZA=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Results e —ECEHE “E-hE “E-)N\E “E—tE “E-RE
Revenue Wz
(RMB'000) (NREF) 275,541 804,898 90,251 615,899 479,111
(Loss) profit attributable EATZHEBA
to owners of the L (8538) i
Company (RMB'000) (AREF7m) (7,775) 74,184 (34,461) 44,702 4612
(Losses) earnings per share % (E518) BB A
(RMB cents)* (NEH&D)*
- Basic —&K (4.26) 40.66 (21.57) 29.37 3.00
- Diluted —8E (4.26) 40.66 (21.57) 29.37 N/AA3E
* Based on share consolidation of one new share for ten old shares. * BRI+ IRERD SR —IRHIRMD R M &6t
% o
At 31 December
R+ZB=+—8H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Assets and liabilities BERER —E-E “E-hEF “E-N\F “E—tfF “E-REF
Total assets EEBE
(RMB'000) NS ) 1,096,471 1,183,485 1,535,616 1,382,377 1,508,282
Total liabilities =Rt
(RMB'000) AREF7T) (353,288) (494,908) (942,117) (787,982) (974,254)
Net asset value BEFE
(RMB'000) AR®F7) 743,183 688,577 593,499 594,395 534,028
Equity attributable to owners BATZHB A
of the parent (RMB'000) LR
N 685,468 631,426 557,022 556,359 503,906
Non-controlling interests el 4
(RMB'000) AE®T) 57,715 57,151 36,477 38,036 30,122
Total equity T 743,183 688,577 593,499 594,395 534,028
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the China
Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year”) is as follows:

Property Development and Investment

During the Year, the revenue attributed to the
property development and investment business
amounted to approximately RMB247,878,000
(2019: RMB756,487,000) representing sales of
properties of approximately RMB246,450,000 (2019:
RMB754,819,000) and rental income of approximately
RMB1,428,000 (2019: RMB1,668,000). The Group
operates two property development projects located
in Maoming City, Guangdong Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The first Maoming
Project has developed into a composite of residential
and commercial properties in three phases (the “First
Maoming Project”). Majority of commercial and
residential properties of Phase 1 and 2 of the First
Maoming Project were delivered and recognised as
the revenue of the Group in previous years. Phase 3
properties were started to be delivered and recognised
as sales in December 2018 and continued during the
Year. Approximately 4,000 square meters of commercial
properties was leased and classified as investment
properties of the Group. Amid the worsen economies
in the world as a result of COVID-19 outbreak, during
the Year, the fair value of investment properties was
decreased by approximately RMB10,518,000 (2019:
RMB4,044,000). During the Year, the total area of
residential and commercial properties recognised as
sales were approximately 14,600 square meters and
1,693 square meters respectively (2019: 87,652 square
meters and 887 square meters respectively). 834
units and 217 units (2019: 459 units and 122 units
respectively) of car parking spaces for private cars and
motorbikes respectively were recognised as sales during
the Year. As at 31 December 2020, residential and
commercial properties contracted for pre-sale are as
follows:

BIEE W &ﬁ#ﬁ

H7%[O1EE

FEEMEBRBERAE (TARE)) REWE
NE(TEXER) RBEE_ZE_F+_A4
T+ HLEFE(XFE) 2ETBEED
ClEEWT :

MEZRRIRE

RNEAEE YEBEREKBREEEREMHZIK
HAANRM247,878,000w (ZEB—H 5
ANR®756,487, 00075) C BD Y EHE N AN
R #246,450,000 0 (Z&E—H&FE: AE
754,819 000m> AW AL ARKE
1,428,0007_5( T—NF: AE”&%W 668,000
7)o AEERDEARKANE ((hE)) &
FERATREMEAYELERBE BHEXK
LIEBES L EACTCETREYES B
MiraZRERBE (TEEAKXZER)) - EEK
LIEESE—AARFE A EEEAETEY
X ENBETEERTREIRASNERB R o
FEZHYMER_ZE-NE+_BAHEBITR
KEEFEBEXNAEIRBAFEE BRYEY
4000 E A KEHHERDEAKRER ZKREY
o o 4 BT 0 B A 5 O U B
REHEESTL REVEZRAABRLY
AER#10,518,000c (ZE—NF: AR
4,044,00070) R EAEE HBIBAHEEZET

ﬁm%%%zﬂ@% TRIAI14,600F 5 KK
1,693 F AKX (ZE—HF: 9587,652FH
KEBBTEFK) cMNAEE  BRAHEZH
REHERLEZFEMND P A834EK2171E
(ZE—NF . DR4A59E E122M@E) - R 2=
TEFE+_RA=+—H BEFTINEE T
TEHEBBAYENT :

Percentage

B

(Note)

(FfF5E)

Phase 1 & 2 of the First Maoming Project BEXLEES —HKE T 55%
Phase 3 of the First Maoming Project BEXZEEE=H 65%

Note:  Refer to the percentage of area of residential and commercial
properties contracted for pre-sales over the total unsold area
of residential and commercial properties.

M HBEINREZATHEBBYEEBLREEE

HEAYFEEEEZB DL
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R

On 27 November 2019, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group successfully won the bid of land use
rights of a parcel of land situated at Maoming lJixiang
District* (X% ™ &5 #/V&) (the “Second Maoming
Project”) for a consideration of approximately
RMB241,512,000 while the transaction was completed
in May 2020. Further details are stated in the section
“SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS” of this annual report.

The Second Maoming Project will be developed into a
composite of residential and commercial properties with
the following approximate preliminary planned areas:

Land site area 29,000m?
Gross saleable area 84,000m?
Residential areas 59,000m?
Commercial areas 25,000m?
Carpark spaces 1,000 units

The above planned preliminary data of the Second
Maoming Project may be subjected to further changes
and modifications. The pre-sales of the Second Maoming
Project are scheduled to begin in late 2021 and properties
will be delivered from second half year of 2023 onward.

Trading of raw cane sugar

In 2018, the Group has entered into a master agreement
with China Sugar Holdings Limited (“China Sugar”) to
purchase raw cane sugar from China Sugar for a period
of 34 months ending 31 December 2020. For the Year,
revenue from trading of raw cane sugar amounted to
approximately RMB27,663,000 (2019: RMB48,411,000).
Since the Group is able to obtain a stable supply with
competitive price from China Sugar, a segment profit of
approximately RMB2,025,000 (2019: RMB947,000) was
recorded. The performance of raw cane sugar trading
business in the future will be greatly depending on
the global recovery from the COVID-19 outbreak. The
management of the Group will take precautions to mitigate
relevant business risks.

*  For identification purpose only
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R TE-NEFE+—RBZ+tH xEBEZER
EWNB AR UNEHNARE241,512,0007T
IR —RUR BB SHFNEZ M
T ERE ((F-EAXLER)  ARRS
RIZZZEFRAATH -E—THBHINE
FHRZHAEZEARE - WBABZERK
BREE URRRFERKREXABAELE
EZsHE —8-

F_EXLEERERAETCHEBBRYES
—ENREERER  EYP MRS EBEN

o
A8 R 29,000 A K
molEmBA 84,000 A K
FEmBE 59,000 77 3K
ERENEE 25,000 75 K
EEAL 1,0001&

LRECEEEEA IS REMBTTE
— S BRRER B _EELEEHER T
T ERBAAEAMERR S C=ET
YR o

A CE - NF o AERROFEBEEERS
RAE (THEEE) BEREEAPEBEE
U E EHRABEE_ST_ZTFE+_AH
Zt+—HUE=FHER - RAFE > REHEE
SZWHEHNAREE27,663,0007T (ZE— A
£ ANRMA48,411,0007T) c AR A& E 6E
%’]Lj\*ﬁ_“%ﬂZFﬁﬁqﬂlﬂ%%% = E M
fE> AR/ EFHARE2,025,0007T
(ZE—HE: AR®947,0007T) o KEKRERE
ESEBR 2 EXBERBERKEE LBURARH
AERREMRIBERERERR T - AEEH
EEERRIFEN B EERERE R -



Management Discussion and Analysis

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

As the COVID-19 pandemic ravaged the world in
2020, the global economic generally suffered a strong
setback. Amid the effective public health measures in the
PRC and low COVID-19 cases, the domestic economy
including the property market are comparatively stable
during 2020. The property market is still a cornerstone
of GDP growth that the management expected that the
related fiscal and monetary policies shall remain stable
in the future. The PRC’s macroeconomic policies should
seek a balance between growth and stabilisation. The
management is cautiously optimistic about Maoming
property market because of: i) Easing of the COVID-19
outbreak in Maoming and generally in the PRC due
to control measures; ii) Stable monetary and fiscal
policies; iii) Continuing urbanisation in Maoming and
strong local demands; and iv) Local city transformation
and infrastructure development continue in western
Guangdong province.

Regarding the First Maoming Project, as more and more
residents are moving into the area, sales campaigns in 2021
will be on the remaining commercial properties and carpark
spaces. The Group will also reinforce its financial resources
and human resources to the Second Maoming Project. The
pre-sales of Second Maoming Project are scheduled to be
started in late 2021, while management will cautiously
review the market to further fine tune the plan and
development schedule.

Regarding the trading of raw cane sugar business, due to
the outbreak of COVID-19, extra precautions will be put
on the commodity price fluctuation of raw cane sugar as
it becomes more volatile. The management will further
explore trading business of sugar while sufficient risk
mitigations can be implemented.

BIEE W &ﬁ#ﬁ

hmiIERERAIS

HR ZZE_ZEFEHAUSKFESEMXBEEE
2R EARKEETREESEA - RETEHA
Mz AHEBEEEABHRESTRESHRE
Bl S _SFEOEYPETBERZBEREE
HEBE - YETHPNEREAMEELEREY
RO EEBEBAAFBEMBEEEBEEERE
THRIEFBE -PENRESEBRRFENIE KA
BEzlSRTFH EEBBHXAYEMISZIE
FEBELBEEAE REAR DRADLDEDEE
E“LE’H&’*” R 9% 35 B K E 1B R I I $E A
BHER INEB RV BBEET i)k
fEﬂ:L&ﬁ%iEz“‘iﬂl Kog % 5 Kiv)E i

ETHTNERERER

MEEXREEMS  ARBEXMNERA
mIgM — 2 —FZHERHMREENET
HAMEREFEES - XEETTMRE _EX
LEEZMBEERRANER -F_EX2E

Bst8IR T —FRHARKRAE EEER
%Eﬁ%ﬁ%u — S RABEMAEE K%
stE)e

FEEEZEFBHFE BRNBEMETKRES
ik BB BEREZATEREBREANE
BRI REINTEB i - EIEE R E— T W
V&8 7 X5 B B I %7 15 1 P& (K & B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group's revenue is amounted to
approximately RMB275,541,000 (2019: RMB804,898,000).
The loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB7,775,000 (2019: profit of
RMB74,184,000). The decline of the revenue and profit
were mainly due to the decreased delivery and sales
recognition of properties of phase 3 of the Maoming
Project and fair value change on investment properties.

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash
were approximately RMB77,848,000 (31.12.2019:
RMB63,528,000), restricted bank deposit was
approximately RMB22,000 (31.12.2019: RMB896,000)
and pledged bank deposits were approximately
RMB11,486,000 (31.12.2019: RMB31,285,000). As
at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group
was approximately RMB1,096,471,000 (31.12.2019:
RMB1,183,485,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 7%. The decrease was mainly due to the
delivery of properties of phase 3 of the Maoming Project.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total secured
bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and loan payables
amounted to approximately RMB21,609,000 (31.12.2019:
RMB16,165,000). As at 31 December 2020, the gearing
ratio, expressed as a percentage of total secured bank
borrowings, loan payables and bank overdrafts over net
assets was approximately 3% (31.12.2019: 2%) and the
current ratio was approximately 3.2 (31.12.2019: 2.4).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 16 October 2020, the Company held an extraordinary
general meeting and an ordinary resolution was passed,
approving the consolidation of every ten (10) issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company into one (1) consolidated share of
HK$1.00 in the share capital of the Company. The share
consolidation became effective on 20 October 2020.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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FiA %5 [0l B

NEREFE > AEBBHWRZY AR
275,541,000 (ZE—HFE: AR
804,898,0007T) c ARBIHEE ANEMHEIELN

ANE#7,775,0007t (ZE—HFE  GF AR
‘fﬁﬂz74 184,0007T) c Wm BoamH FREEERRN

RBIEE S =Y ERRA K EE ERA D
UhBEMEZ NREEEFTE -

R_E_ZF+_RA=+—RB B8 FKE
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=+—H: AR%896,0007) KB IKIMIRIT
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BA=+—H:@ AR%31,285,0007T) - N _&
TEE+ A=+ —H AEENBREEY
AR ¥1,096,471,000c (Z&E—HhE+A
=+—HB8: ARM®1,183,485,0007T) » B/ &
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MY EFRR - RN _E_TF+_B=+—H>
AREBNBEEBIRTERRBE - RTEIRIE
NEHHOARB21,609,000c (ZE—NF
+ ﬁ +—H: AR¥16,165,0007T) o 1*
“EIEF+ A=+ —H BEEBGBEX (MU
E%EHE?%EMETAM%E FEFERKRIRTE S B
MEEFEZEDLEFAE) 3% (ZE—hLF
+ZB=+—H:2%)  MAELLEHN3.2 (=
E-NE+"B=+—H:24)c°
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For details of the share consolidation, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 2 September 2020,
16 October 2020 and 20 October 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 23 September 2020.

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$254,469,052
divided into 254,469,052 shares of HK$1.00 each.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITY

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 September 2020 and the circular of the Company
dated 23 September 2020 in respect of, amongst other
things, the subscription of new shares by a connected
person under specific mandate. On 2 September 2020,
the Company and a connected person entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, and the subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, of 72,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) at HK$1.0
per share (on the basis that the share consolidation was
completed).

The aggregate gross proceeds and the net proceeds (after
deduction of the relevant expenses) were approximately
HK$72 million and HK$71.4 million respectively, (i) of which
approximately HK$17 million as general working capital
of the Company and (ii) of which approximately HK$54.4
million as payment of property project development and
construction fee. The Directors consider that the issue
of Subscription Shares can provide the Company with
access to additional funds to enhance its working capital
and strengthen its capital base and financial position for
the future development. The terms of the Subscription
Agreement were arrived at after arm'’s length negotiations
between the Company and the subscriber, taking into
account the market price of the existing shares. The
Directors are of the view that the Subscription Agreement
is entered into upon normal commercial terms and, based
on the prevailing market conditions, that the Subscription
Agreement is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

BIEESwmA D

EREROEeHZHEE FE2REARBHEAZ
ETEFAA_RB-EEE+HE+AER
TECEFETRA+THZAGURAKRABH
A E_EFEAB_+=ZHZEX-

R_E_ZFE+_A=+—H > &x23HWE
BT ZERRALNBIE254,469,05270° 04
254,469,052 SRR EEBIE1.007cHI RS ©

EE5EY

ZIE®RAATBBHA_SE_EENLE B2
NERKEATDHBA_E_EFHNRE_+=
HZz@K RAEAER (HPhaE) MEALR
BESEEIERRD R _SEFAAC
A A B HEEEATTURERS (TREH
&) B KRB BEREHE B KRBT
MBEAEBREHEERERKRMD B0
S0 EE72,000,000R A A B EER (MBERMD )
(UMD EHTRBEE) o

FTi8RNIBHEIERMMEMIEFE (0 ERFM
%) DB ANBEET2,000,0007T K E
71,400,000t (WEF 4981 17,000,0007T
BEARBZ—REBESMINEFLHEE
54,400,000t AN ZNMEEHME RER
ER -EERA BORBROBEBALTE
BEZET UENMEEEECUERAE R
EREUHERT UEERKER -BDBEIHZE
ZHERTTEARDHEBBALLAFTERRE
Tt RIRERDGZHE - EFAVE 8]
WELE—RBERABERITH R &
REMZBEATAE UREEARBDMKREZ
AR o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R

As at 31 December 2020, none was used as general
working capital and approximately HK$24 million as
payment of property of project development. The
remaining amount of fund raised not yet utilised are as
follows:

6:7_;§¢+ B=+—H #@EXEBEHME
—REEES KRN BE24,000,000 T AR X
Y EBEERE SAIACEEEESHE
mE:

RMB million
ARKEETT

Payment of Second Maoming Project development
and construction fee

General working capitals — s

XN E_EXBEERERERER

approximately
30.4
#930.4

approximately
17.0
#17.0

As at 31 December 2020, unutilised proceeds of
approximately HK$47.4 million were deposited in licensed
banks for future use in accordance with the proposed
intention. The Group will continue to monitor the progress
of the Second Maoming Project and other business and
expected that the fund will be used in 2021.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure closely and consider the use of hedging
instruments when the need arises.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying values of
approximately RMB14,765,000 (2019: RMB16,128,000)
were pledged to banks for securing general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, restricted bank deposit of
RMB22,000 (2019: RMB896,000) and pledged bank
deposits of RMB11,486,000 (2019: RMB31,285,000) of
the Group were pledged to obtain the mortgage facilities
provided to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties
for which guarantees were provided by the Group to the
banks.

As at 31 December 2020, banking facilities of
approximately RMB13,189,000 (2019: RMB1,776,000)
were utilised and approximately RMB20,744,000 (2019:
RMB8,780,000) were unutilised and available for the
Group'’s future financing.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in note 4
of notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments for
development of properties amounted to RMB369,138,000
(2019: acquisition of a land RMB139,052,000).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 41 (2019:
44) full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Total
remuneration of the Group for the Year was approximately
RMB15,199,000 (2019: RMB13,764,000). The Group’s
emolument policies are formulated on the basis of market
trends, future plans and the performance of individuals,
which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from provident
fund scheme and state-managed social welfare scheme,
share options will also be awarded to employees according
to assessment of individuals' performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum obligation
in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
approximately RMB163,165,000 (2019: RMB577,518,000).

BIEE W &ﬁ#ﬁ

RZE_ZEHE+_A=+—H' ARK
22,0000 (ZZ2—N%F : ARE896,0007T) 2
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R

DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared or proposed during the Year. The
Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

With reference to the announcements of the Company
dated 28 November 2019, 20 January 2020 and 23
January 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
24 January 2020, the Group has started processing the
acquisition of land use rights in Maoming.

On 27 November 2019, Maoming Shang Cheng Real
Estate Company Limited* (X% EHEZEER AR, an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
successfully won the bid of land use rights of a parcel of
land situated at JIXIANG-23, Maoming Jixiang District* (7%
LmERE/NE) with a total site area of approximately
29,274.16 square meters offered for a consideration of
RMB241,511,900. A deposit of RMB102,460,000 has been
transferred before the end of the Year, while a further sum
of RMB50,000,000 has been paid in January 2020. The
remaining sum of RMB89,051,900 were paid in May 2020
while the land acquisition transaction was completed.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant
investments held as at 31 December 2020 nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during the Year
and there is no plan for material investments or capital
assets as at the date of this annual report.

*  For identification purpose only

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z_ZT&FFR

:35)

RAEFE TESRIBRKECTRE -EFE
BRKELAFEZEFARE -

BB hERERES

REFE > ARBREEENBAGDHMEESES
HERIARRBER LEHES-

FEZEAKRE -WBATNZEXNKRER
é’i ’-l_léj)i'zﬁkﬂﬂ’ﬁik?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁkﬁzkﬁ
st E

IR AN RBBEA_ZET-NAE+— B
“+NB-ZEZEFE—RFB+HERZZEZZE
F—BZ+ZHZAEKRARBHBEA S
TEF-B_+NBEAZER AERRKET
ERBETIMMERERESEE

A _E-NE+—BZ+tH REeLAEE
BRAGB (AR BzBEEBEEZENBLAE) U
ANRHE241,511,9007T 2 & B Th 12 — 18
R EETEHENEIXIANG-2327 £ i (4814
ME 429,274 16 F F5K) 2 LM ERE-
REXRF EEEHZS AR®102,460,000
TR _EEFE—A BTN ARE
50,000,0007c ° BR%E A R 189,051, 900753

R CEFRRNN I HMRBREZES T
A o
FEXAREEN RZE_FTF+_A

=+— E]Dﬁi\hﬁ%k?ﬁéf RAFEERN TR E
MBABZEANRBEREE RN AFRAH
WHEEAKENBAELREEZSHE -



Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director and chairman of the Company on 17 August
2012. Mr. Liu Feng has over twenty years' experience in the
general management and sugars markets in the PRC. Mr.
Liu Feng is Vice Director of Sugar Association of China* (F
BUMEZEH =) . Mr. Liu Feng is a founder of an enterprise
engaged in the sugar and starch production business
in the PRC. Mr. Liu Feng was awarded as a “Distinct
Entrepreneur” by China Economic Trading Promotion
Agency* (FPEIAHEE F 2 E)in 2011 and as a “Distinct
Non-Government Entrepreneur of China” by China Non-
Government Enterprise Directors Association* (47 B R & 1
21 E)in 2009. He holds an Executive Master Degree
of Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business. Mr. Liu Feng is the father of Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang, the executive Director.

Mr. Chen Xian, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
Director and the vice-chairman of the Company on 12
October 2007 and was re-designated as the chairman
of the Company on 30 November 2007. Mr. Chen Xian
was re-designated again as the vice-chairman of the
Company on 17 August 2012. He is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen Xian is
one of the founders of a sizeable property development
company in Zhuhai, the PRC and has been a member of
the senior management of a subsidiary of that company.
Mr. Chen Xian was mainly responsible for the investment
and development of real estate projects of such companies.
Before joining those companies, Mr. Chen Xian worked
as a senior member of certain stated-owned companies
and the local authority. He has more than 19 years of
extensive experience in the investment and development of
real estate projects. He holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration from the Asia International Open University
(Macau).

* For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESRMB{T

Mr. Lau Sai Chung, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2006 and was re-designated as an executive Director on
30 November 2007. Mr. Lau Sai Chung was also appointed
as the chief executive officer of the Company on 30
November 2007. He is currently also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau Sai Chung holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce with major in Accounting
from the University of Alberta, Canada and has over 20
years' experience in the field of banking and finance both
in Hong Kong and North America. Mr. Lau Sai Chung is
also a fellow member of the Institute of Canadian Bankers
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and a member
of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association.

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, aged 33, was appointed as an
executive Director on 30 September 2015. He is currently
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Liu Zhongxiang obtained a diploma of legal secretary from
the People’s Public Security University of China (FFEA
EALAE)in 2009. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang has ten years
of experience in diverse businesses, such as construction
and sugar production and trading. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
the son of Mr. Liu Feng, the chairman and the executive
Director of the Company.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (“Mr. Poon”), aged 49, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 29
November 2006. Mr. Poon is also the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Poon is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of CPA Australia
and a practicing member of Asset Management Association
of China. He holds a bachelor degree in administrative
studies from York University in Canada and a master
degree in practicing accounting with Monash University in
Australia. Mr. Poon worked for an international accounting
firm and was responsible for providing business advisory
and assurance services for listed companies. He has over 20
years of experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition. Mr.
Poon is currently an independent non-executive director of
Smartac International Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Smartac Group China Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
395), Teamway International Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1239) and LFG Investment Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3938), the shares of which are listed on main board
of the Stock Exchange since 29 January 2010, 19 March
2019 and 10 September 2019, respectively. Mr. Poon is the
executive director and chief financial officer of Huakang
Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8622)
and the independent non-executive director of Niche-Tech
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8490), since 3 August 2017
and 28 June 2019, the shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Poon was an independent
non-executive director of Cityneon Holdings Limited (SGX:
5HJ), from 11 August 2017 to 30 April 2019, the shares of
which were listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited and
were delisted on 1 February 2019 since it was privatized.
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Biographical Details of Directors

ESRMB{T

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (“Mr. Char”), aged 71, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
30 September 2015. Mr. Char is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Char is currently a Barrister-at-Law and
was an independent non-executive director of National
Investments Fund Limited (Stock Code: 1227), from May
2007 to November 2018, whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Char holds a
bachelor of laws (Honours) from the University of London
and a master degree in Social Sciences from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Char was also the chief investigator and
senior assignment officer of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004 and
a chief executive officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.

Mr. Chen Weijiang, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 January 2020. Mr.
Chen Weijiang is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee, a member of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr.
Chen Weijiang has over twenty years of experience in the
sugar markets in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chen
Weijiang obtained a law degree from the Xi‘an Politics
Institute of the People’s Liberation Army* (#2145 7§ 22 B
JA2B%) and commenced work at the Zhanjiang Hengde
Sugar Company Limited* CETIEEIEEBRAE) in
1997. From 2007 to 2017, Mr. Chen Weijiang acted as the
executive director of Zhanjiang Hengde Sugar Company
Limited* GROLIEBIEEARRF).

*  For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company's corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Throughout
the Year, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirms that all Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Year.

COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing its corporate value. As at
31 December 2020, the Board consisted of seven Directors,
comprising four executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEELRHRS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

Mr. Chen Weijiang (appointed on 3 January 2020)
Ms. Li Jiansheng (Resigned on 3 January 2020)

The Directors’ biographical information are set out in pages
13 to 16 of this annual report. All executive Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board
except Mr. Liu Feng is the father of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang.

The Board has delegated the executive Directors with
authority and responsibility by handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of
the Company, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be taken
by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of
interim dividend and making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions
under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and
making recommendation for capital reorganization or
scheme arrangement of the Company.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties
as a Director may convene, or request the secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to convene,
a meeting of the Board to approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice.

The Company adopts the practice of holding meetings
of the Board regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Notice of meeting of the Board will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular Board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
Board meetings. Directors may participate either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

During the Year, four meetings of the Board were held,
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The attendance of Directors at the
Board meetings and the Board committees’ meetings is set
out in the table below:
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£33 EE BEREEE FWEEE RYZRE REAS
Executive Directors RTES
Mr. Liu Feng KL 44 - - - m
Mr. Chen Xian REXE 44 - - - 0
Mr. Lau Sai Chung At R 44 - - - b))
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang 2BMkE 44 - - - M
Independent Non-executive Directors B FH{TES
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael ERERE 414 20 20 2 2
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen BHAKE 44 22 22 22 22
Mr. Chen Weijiang BERILE
(appointed on 3 January 2020) (R-Z_ZE
—B=REZM) 33 W) n 0 112
Ms. Li Jiansheng FRELT
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EEELAHRS

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive a comprehensive induction package covering
business operations, policy and procedures of the Company
as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group
also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the
continuous professional developments in relation to
regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the
Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:

Name of Directors
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Attended
Seminars or
Briefing/Read
Materials
BMANGH
BN Y BEME

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Feng

Mr. Chen Xian

Mr. Lau Sai Chung
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

Mr. Chen Weijiang (appointed on 3 January 2020)

Ms. Li Jiansheng (resigned on 3 January 2020)
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) are segregated
and are currently held by Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Lau Sai
Chung respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the
Group's strategic planning and the management of the
operations of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer
takes the lead in the Group's operations and business
development. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer which
provides a balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years, and subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM") in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). One of
the independent non-executive Director has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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EEELAHRS

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. On 20 December 2013,
the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, which has brought it in line
with the new Listing Rules relating to the board diversity
with effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During the Year and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee has the following three
members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Chairman)

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Chen Weijiang (appointed on 3 January 2020)
Ms. Li Jiansheng (resigned on 3 January 2020)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to the
Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination of
Directors should take into consideration the candidate’s
qualification, ability and potential contribution to the
Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. No Director
was newly appointed during the Year.
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During the Year, two meetings were held by the
Nomination Committee to recommend the re-appointment
of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM, to
review the size, structure, composition as well as diversity
of the Board, to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the changes of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered that the Group has achieved the objectives of
the board diversity policy during the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with the written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management. During the Year and as at the
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
has the following three members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weijiang (Chairman)
(appointed on 3 January 2020)

Ms. Li Jiansheng (Chairman)
(resigned on 3 January 2020)

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.
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Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. During
the Year, two meetings of Remuneration Committee were
held for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration policy and
structure for as well as the remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management and considering
the remuneration packages of all newly appointed
Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. On 1 January 2019, the
Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, which has brought it in line with the
new requirement of the Listing Rules. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on both the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During
the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee has the following three members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (Chairman)

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

Mr. Chen Weijiang (appointed on 3 January 2020)
Ms. Li Jiansheng (resigned on 3 January 2020)

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed and made recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year, discussed the
accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group with the management and auditor of the Company,
reviewed the fees charged by the external auditor and
reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.
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During the Year, two meetings were held by the Audit
Committee to review and make recommendation to the
Board for approval of the audited results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and the unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020, to
discuss the accounting policies and practices which may
affect the Group with the management of the Company
and the Company’s auditor, to make recommendation on
re-appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
shareholders in the AGM, to review the fees charged by
the external auditor; and approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of external auditor and to review
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit functions of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions. The terms of reference
of corporate governance functions was adopted by the
Board on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with the CG
Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the policy
of the corporate governance and the corporate governance
report of the Company.

DIRECTOR’S NOMINATION POLICY

The director’'s nomination policy of the Company was
adopted by the Board and became effective on 1 January
2019 and the Nomination Committee is responsible for
execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilizes various methods for
identifying director candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and headhunters.
The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
In addition, the Nomination Committee will consider
director candidates properly submitted by shareholders
of the Company through formal procedures set out in
the Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director.
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For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's consideration
and approval. For proposing director candidates to
stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and
candidates nominated by shareholders of the Company are
evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon the
director’s qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee
retains the discretion to establish the relative weighting of
such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather
than on the individual candidate.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to the recommendation of director candidates
by the Nomination Committee to stand for election
at any general meeting. The Board will take such
recommendations under advisement and is responsible
for designating the director candidates to be elected at
the annual general meeting of the Company and electing
directors to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with
their written consent to be appointed as a Director and
to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the director
candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on
the criteria as set out below to determine whether such
director candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each director candidate (where
applicable).
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For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
director candidate based on the criteria as set out below
to determine whether such director candidate is qualified
for directorship and where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her
candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated
persons shall not assume that they have been proposed by
the Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General
Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Directors including their attendance of Board meetings
and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Directors continue to meet
the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of Directors at the general
meeting.
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Director Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new
Director, or the continued service of existing Director:

(a) the highest personal and professional ethics and
integrity;

(b) proven achievement and competence in the
nominee’s field and the ability to exercise sound
business judgment;

(0) qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are
complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any
measurable objectives adopted by the Nomination
Committee for achieving diversity on the Board;

(f) an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities
that is required of a member of the Board and
the commitment of time and energy necessary to
diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(9) meet the “independence” criteria as required under
the Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is
in conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules
from time to time (where applicable).

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum
criteria for director candidate, although the Nomination
Committee may also consider such other factors as it may
deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 20 December 2013, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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As at the date of this annual report, the information

zZ db =2

(including sex, age, educational background, professional HEER BEK
experience, term of appointment and designation) of the

Board is as follows:

RAFHRBAM EFTEN (BFESH - FE8
e EHARER) W

No. of Director

EFAH
Age group: Below 41 1
FHe4ER - MU
41 to 50 2
A ES0%
51 to 60 2
51ZE605%
Over 60 2
605% A
Gender: Male 7
MR 5
Female 0
%z
Educational background: Hong Kong and Macau 2
HEER: EYClad
The PRC 3
FRE
Overseas 2
g4
Length of service (year): 1-5 3
ARFS IR () - 1255
6-10 1
62104
Over 10 3
105 U &
Designation: Executive Director 4
58 : BITES
Independent Non-executive Director 3

BIIFRITES
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For the purpose of implementation of the Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1.

The Company shall comply with the requirements
on board composition under the Listing Rules from
time to time.

The number of independent non-executive Directors
should be not less than three and one-third of the
Board.

At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

At least one Director should be the professional or
have intensive experience of the industry on which
the business of the Group is.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the

Policy.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the Year were performed
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit
and non-audit services provided by external auditor is set

out in the following table:

SNEERZBEMFT IR M Z A E R B R IFZHAR TS
ZEN /BN ZERRBHEHEIINTXR:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FRr {2 AR 75 Bt EHER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BEZEITFE BEZZ—NF
+-A=+—H +ZA=+—H
LEEFEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g e FAEMR S FETEMTT
— Audit services —IZ IR 1,350 1,350
— Non-audit services —IEZBPRTS
Interim review FhHR R 590 590
— Non-audit services —IEZBBRTS
Assurance — Continuing BR—IFERERS
connected transactions - 40
Assurance — Very substantial ER—IEBRERNKESE
acquisition 220 -
Total fee paid/payable B Iz EREH 2,160 1,980
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Fu Lui, was appointed on
2 July 2010. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and has regarded to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on the Group's
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
During the Year, Mr. Fu Lui undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements at the end of the
Year which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for the
Year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 86 to 93 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal controls
are maintained, while the management of the Company
is charged with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. A sound system
of risk management and internal controls is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework of
the Group

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing its
effectiveness. The Audit Committee supports the Board
in monitoring the Group's risk exposures, the design and
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the
Company assesses and presents regular reports to the
Audit Committee on its own assessments of key risks, the
strengths and weaknesses of the overall internal control
systems, with action plans to address the weaknesses.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified
in the course of its work. Taking these into consideration,
the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the Group’s system of risk management and internal
controls, and reports to the Board on such reviews. Work
and findings of the management of the Company are
considered by the Board in forming its own view on the
effectiveness of the system.

The Group persistently engages independent professional
team and internal team in performing internal audit work
after considering the independence, flexibility, and overall
efficiency.
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EEELRS

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework R EIRRAEREEERIEE
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and
Procedures

Control Environment — The Group has been operating
under an established and appropriate control environment
with reference to principles of “Internal Control and
Risk Management — A Basis Framework” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Risk management and internal controls cover effective
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance.

Risk Assessment — The Group continues to drive
improvements to its risk management process and the
quality of risk information generated, while at the same
time maintaining a simple and practical approach. We seek
to have risk management features embedded within our
operations, aiming to have a risk management system that
is practised on a day-to-day basis by our operating units.

The Board reviews and understands the risk factors of the
Group and operations annually, and the management of
the Company continuously monitors the scope and quality
of ongoing risk management and internal control systems.
The “Top-down” monitoring ensures risk management
features embedded within the operations and operated
effectively.

Meanwhile, the heads of operation units participate in
risk identification from “Bottom-up” so as to identify the
Group's overall risks.

Control Activities — The Group’'s core property
development business and trading of raw sugar involve
well-established business processes. Control activities have
traditionally been built on top-level reviews, segregation
of duties and physical controls. We have been formalizing
and documenting the control processes in policies and
procedures. Written policies and procedures with defined
limits of delegated authority are in place, which facilitate
effective segregation of duties and controls.
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Planning and budgeting processes are one of key control
activities of the Group, which have been refined to
take into consideration risk factors. All operating units
prepare their respective operating plans pursuant to
corporate objectives for consideration. In this process,
they are required to identify material risks that may
impact the achievement of their business objectives.
Action items to mitigate the identified risks are developed
for implementation as well as for achieving the budget
and business objectives. Variance analyses are regularly
performed and reported to the management of the
Company and the Board. These help identify deficiencies
and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Capital expenditures monitoring is also significant to the
capital-intensive nature of the property business of the
Group. Depending on the nature and the size of the
projects, detailed analyses of expected capital expenditures
are submitted to the heads of operating units, executive
Directors or the Board for consideration and approval.

Monitoring Activities — The Board and Audit Committee
oversee the process, monitored by internal and external
professionals of the Group. The management of the
Company has emphasized in its updated reports to
the Audit Committee on movements of top risks and
appropriate mitigating measures. There is at least one Audit
Committee meeting substantially devoted to risks items.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

In handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Group:

will conduct immediate dissemination once inside
information is available and/or respective decision is
made, except the inside information falling into the
Safe Harbours of Securities and Futures Commission
that allow non-disclosure;

- complies with applicable laws, rules and guidelines
on disclosure of inside information issued by
Securities and Futures Commission;

- decides and implements monitoring procedures
regarding dissemination of inside information; and

- communicates with relevant persons about
corporate information disclosure practices with
respective training.

REVIEW ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
IN 2020

The Board and the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
for the Year and such review is conducted annually. The
Board opts that during the Year, risk management and
internal control systems are effective and sufficient, and
no event leads to material impact on Group's financial,
operational and compliance controls. Respective reviews
cover the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and the effectiveness of the Group’s processes
for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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RECOMMENDED BEST PRACTICES

Group'’s Risk Factors

As a basis of risk management, we should understand the
Group's existing risk factors and respective change from
time to time. Listed below are the nature of significant risk
factors that the Group is facing, whilst the listed factors will
not be exclusive:

Risk factors

o The Group may be unable to sell property
investment at expected prices or terms due to
volatility in the property market of the PRC.

o The Group is required to comply with numerous
government rules and new regulations to be
promulgated from time to time, and may be
affected by tightening measures launched by the
PRC government for regulating the real estate
industry.

o The business of the Group may be significantly
affected if the engaged external construction
contractors encounter any problem during
development of property given our full reliance on
them to conduct all the construction projects.

o Principal revenues and expenses of the Group -
Property development business are denominated
in Renminbi. Investors may indirectly invest in
the assets denominated in Renminbi. If Renminbi
weakens against Hong Kong dollars, the asset value
of the shares denominated in Hong Kong dollars will
decline.

o Implementation fluency and efficiency of exchange
control of the PRC will mitigate the ability of the
Group's fund transfer.

o COVID-19 outbreak in the PRC may detriment the
sale of existing property of the First Maoming Project
and development of the Second Maoming Project.

o COVID-19 outbreak in the world may suppress the
demand of raw sugar and enhance price volatility.
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EEELAHRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing
and transparent communication with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation. A
shareholder’s communication policy was adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the
shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of
the Company. The Company also uses various other
means of communication with its shareholders, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group's
business activities and development on the Company's
website: www.chinauptown.com.hk.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company Secretary may be sent by post to
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Dividend policy

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
was adopted by the Board and became effective on 1
January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company. The Board endeavors
to strike a balance between the shareholders’ interests and
prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend

policy.
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The declaration and recommendation of dividends is
subject to the decision of the Board after considering the
Company'’s ability to pay dividends, which will depend
upon, among other things:

the Group's financial results;

o the Group’s cash flow, liquidity and capital
requirements;

o the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

o the accumulated profits and distributable reserves of
the Group;

° the Group's shareholders’ interests;

o the Group's current and future business operations,

conditions, cycle and strategies;
° the general market conditions;

o the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and
industry’s norm;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group's lenders;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions;
° past dividend record; and
o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend and the form to pay, subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Laws of Cayman Islands and the
Articles. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company at an annual general meeting and must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.
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TEELRHRS

The Board may also consider declaring special dividends
from time to time, in addition to the interim and/or final
dividends.

There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
one or more shareholders holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any
general meetings of the Company. The shareholder shall
make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower 1, Silvercord,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder,
his/her contact details and the proposal regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower
1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-THFFR

SRR RARBREIN EEZE I AEFE
BEIRFHIRE -

7 A B) A BE R 58 i 1E (E 1A $5 E HA K AT R
BEZBEZRE -

AR ERZ HEF]
RRBARREFINAREZERF

RBEMAA  EFETIABRARLRERTH
ERA+DZ—HFFFESFMNERETATME
AREAE LRZZEF ZEFT-—LRZH
RRZERAARRFIARE -REARNES
CHAREWERLEAER EREBMERSF
EARBZBMEERTBERZMES LS
BANERVEEREIORHTBFLOE —H
15181501F) » ERIBEARRZFRER 5F
MBMBAFX AREARERS EB2EE
R E TR o

RIRRRE LRREBZZERF

KREERNEEFTXALAAMERHIEDER I
BEHERTELRARTDZEBRERERTES
EHE A BEBARERDIBERBEIONRM
BHROE—H1581501F) » EH5ARKRE
FREE - HFHABEBFX - EBRREAZT LIE
EEBEARERS (B 2EZEREX
T o



Corporate Governance Report

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at Suite 1501, 15/F., Tower 1, Silvercord, 30
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or send
email to info@chinauptown.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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RIB LB RERHRS

ABOUT THE REPORT

Reporting Guidelines

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report of China Uptown Group Company
Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”). The report is prepared in compliance with the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main
Board Listing Rules and Guidance published by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Scope and Period

The report covers ESG performance of the office in Hong
Kong and property development business in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") for the period from 1st January
2020 to 31st December 2020.

Feedback

The Group shall continue to enhance its ESG disclosure
in the future. We welcome stakeholders’ feedback on
the report and any suggestions in terms of sustainability-
related matters. You may share your thoughts at:
info@chinauptown.com.hk.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Acknowledging the advancement of concern about
sustainability around the globe, the Group, as a socially
responsible property developer operating in China,
incorporates ESG elements into the operation and
development of properties. It views the incorporation
of ESG related issues in its operations as the foundation
of its business model. To move forward and make
progress, we unceasingly engage with our internal and
external stakeholders, including employees, shareholders,
customers, sub-contractors and the local community, and
hence encompass the concerned topics in our business
operations. Through this comprehensive approach, we
believe our long-term viability is shielded as it flourishes
sustainably.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Striving to be a responsible business that abides by
governmental initiatives, the Group is dedicated to
managing and monitoring its environmental impacts. An
ISO 1400-certified Environmental Management System
("EMS") is in place, led by the senior management and
backed by the environmental protection and monitoring
team. Environmental technicians of the Group are
competent to keep track of its environmental performance.

In addition to internal management, the environmental
protection department communicates closely with
outsourced contractors and suppliers working on our
construction projects. Regular checks are conducted to
assess the adopted green practices and implemented
mitigation measures for various parameters, including
air emissions, waste and noise. Not only safeguarding
the environmental performance, but also lessening the
potential environmental impacts.

To conform with the relevant national standards through
the building design and construction stages, the Group
continues to commission a qualified inspection and
testing organisation to conduct an environmental impact
assessment on noise, air pollutants and sewage.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations' that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

! List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.
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RIB LB RERHRS

Noise

Construction work results in considerable noise being
generated and its control is important for the Company.
Our contractors are bound to work during the permitted
hours only, manage the transportation vehicles effectively,
adopt sound insulation and vibration reduction measures
and set up greening areas to diminish noise from vehicles.

Energy Consumption

Operations of the Group consume petrol and electricity
while no Liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") was used this
year. During the reporting period, the Group consumed
approximately 5,182 gigajoules ("GJ") of energy, with
energy intensity of 2.3 GJ per square metre of floor area’.
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To address the alarming impact of climate change, we
strive to optimise the energy efficiency and reduce energy
consumption in both office operation and property
management. The group has further incorporated
various energy conserving initiatives in agreements with
service providers in the property development sector,
making certain their operations are compliant with our
environmental protection policies and guidelines.

2 Floor area includes offices of the Group in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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Carbon and Air Emissions

The Group emitted greenhouse gases (“GHG") directly
(Scope 1) and indirectly (Scope 2) during the operations.
Direct emissions refer to GHG emissions from combustion
of petrol while indirect emissions are from purchased
electricity. During the reporting period, the total GHG
emissions amounted to 736.7 tons of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCO2e"). There were about 249.1 tCOze
Scope 1 and 487.6 tCOze Scope 2 emissions, with emission
intensity of 0.3 tCOze per square metre of floor area.

RIB LB RERHRS

fix e FE S HEIK

FEBREEBRETERE (BE—) kB (&
B D) BFCRERE - EREBERIE R B RN
BERRE RPN MBEEBEMRBERINESE
HoBEHEAR BEREHFNBERT36.7
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Total GHG Emissions (tCO:ze)
BERBHENEE (H_SEKRKEE
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Il Scope 1
EE—

Petrol consumption is sourced from increased travel
mileage of operating vehicles for site visits, resulting in
emissions of approximately 1.38 kg of sulphur oxides
(SOx), 16.06 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and 1.34 kg
of particulate matters (PM) during the reporting period.
Sprinklers and protective nets are used at the construction
sites to reduce flying dust generated by machinery and
vehicles.

2491
487.6
» Ve
2019
“Z2—NHF
B Scope?2
gE—
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RIF- B RERHRS

Water Consumption

The Group used 28,907 cubic metres (m? of municipal
water in property development and office operations
during the reporting period, and its intensity was about
12.9 m* per square metre of floor area. There were no
issues on sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

IKHFE

REPBR AEBRYERERRAEES
BIERFEA28,907 L A KB HEAEK AKX
FEANABFTHAABEEMAI12.9IL 5K EX
BV /KR W EA T AR RE

Total Water Consumption (m?3)
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As a water conservation initiative, the Group operates
temporary water treatment facilities for filtering and
reusing water at construction sites. To this end, all water
used for construction projects is treated prior to discharge.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-THFFR

2019 2020
—h ot

7 —IHEIKIE  ZEEREZRE T MBS
Rrs KEEIER M LB B RBIRA K FEILL
BRIRENEEAKEOEEERBIER-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB-HERERRS

Solid Waste EIEEEY
The Group generated 8.4 tonnes of non-hazardous waste REBER AEERXTREELES4EES
at construction projects during the reporting period. BEEY) o

Non-hazardous Waste (tonnes)

mEREEY (W)
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To facilitate solid waste reduction, the environmental RIREBRBEERYRE AEBRIRFREFIRIL
protection department of the Group has set up a BEMERINER  UIRSEEEEYLHWH B
centralised waste collection point to stimulate recycling o WE B E BB O QBT LUR DR
rate of construction waste and encourage employees to BEEY) AEBZEETRELEESEY-

adopt green office measures for paper waste reduction.
Operations of the Group do not generate hazardous waste.
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RIB LB RERHRS

OUR PEOPLE & COMMUNITY

At China Uptown, we believe our success is built upon
our employees’ dedication and competency. As such,
promotion and rewards are offered based solely on
employee’s expertise, contribution, performance, and
experience. As an equal opportunity employer, we strive to
nurture a diverse and inclusive work environment where
any form of harassment or discrimination is not tolerated.
Should there be any discriminatory misconduct, staffs
should report to the senior management for further action.

As of 31st December 2020, the Group had a total of 41
employees. The employee composition by geographic

region, age, gender and position is shown as below:

Age
FHe

5% 5%

-

90%

B 3150 >50

B <30

Geographical Distribution

& 53 6 #®
2%

68%

Educational Background

BMANEIRHE

ERE L ZAMAREEEADRIZES
W ERENDER L-FIL > HAERTEH
REBFEXRZEEENER B  ZERKE
BR-ERTERERERT RMABNIRNEES T
BEANIFRE HEEAEANRENIK
ReoMHREFKREFAETR BEIEREDS
MEEBRRUTRIE—TTH-

BHE_ 5+ _A=+—H XxEBEHHA
AL REE -RME - Fie - ER KBS DB
BEHABN T

Gender

31

37%

63%

Bl Vvae | Female
St pgid

Employee Category
S5

44%
98%
56%

[l Maoming ] Hong Kong [l Degree or above Il Management ] Front line
g B KRB L EEE AR A B
B High school or below
LT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Turnover and New Hire Rate by Age

BREBREDBRKRERIBLER

1%
3% 3%
o . 0% . . 0% 0%
Below 30 30 to SOziyears old 51 or above
30 LT 305 2505% S1pR A b

[l Turnover Rate
MARE

B New Hire Rate
MEBLLX

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance of relevant laws and regulations?
that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

The Group is not susceptible to a high risk of child or
forced labour. Yet, we do stay vigilant about preventing
recruitment of child or forced labour and verify the age of
applicants to make sure they are not underage. During the
year, we were not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations having a significant impact on the Group
relating to employment and labour practices; nor did we
identify any incidents relating to the use of child or forced
labour.

Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to occupational
health and safety. In order to minimise occupational health
and safety risk, we require contractors to strictly comply
with our well-defined safety policies at our construction
sites, in accordance with relevant laws and regulations*,

2 List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.

4 List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.

RIB LB RERHRS

Turnover and New Hire Rate by Gender

RIERIE D ERKR R R LE R
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[l Turnover Rate
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RIB LB RERHRS

During the construction process, supervisory engineers
collaborate with contractors to monitor their performance
in respect of adherence to safety practices. Contractors
are required to prepare emergency action plans and
install necessary equipment and to mitigate any safety
hazards. Before construction work commences, contractors
are required to submit a safety measures plan to the
supervising engineer and the Group for approval.

No work-related fatalities were recorded during the year. To
raise safety awareness, we regularly organise safety training
for employees. In 2020, a total of 804 person times of
safety training was recorded.

Total safety training hours

LR IEAR R E

800 —

696

600 —

400 —

200 —

0 < (._ ,) »

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations® that have a significant impact relating to
providing a safe working environment and protection of
employees from occupational hazards during the year.

Training and Development

China Uptown spares no effort to help its employees
excel and thrive by providing inspiring opportunities for
professional development. Various trainings are therefore
delivered to employees across all levels, including directors,
senior management and frontline staff. On top of
organizing mandatory training to update employees about
the latest trend in laws and regulations, we continue to
explore development opportunities that support them to
meet operational needs.

° List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Enhancing the capability and competency of our sales team
is crucial. As such, we have formulated comprehensive
training plans for our sales employees. During the vyear,
professional training focusing on various skills and
knowledge as outlined below was provided. We strive to
equip employees with a thorough understanding of the
market and pave the way to reach sales targets.

RIB LB RERHRS

RARMBEEBRENENNKTERER
I HMERABEEREERNEZEBFIGE - F
R T XA S ERERABMEHE
X BNIRNEBEREXD THRTS HER
HEERBFER-

Trainings for sales professionals
HEASE

Personal skills trainings

18 A $aEE

e Professional qualities of
salesperson

e Sales mentality

e Conflicts resolution

e Sales elite training

s HEABEXERY

o SHE VAR

o BRpERIE

o SHERREIE

e Property delivery

properties
s IHE RIHEEIR
o MERZN

In 2020, 46% of male employees and 93% of female
employees received training, while 35% of managerial
staff and 100% of frontline employees were trained. The
average training hours completed per employee was 3.61
hours during the year.

Community Involvement

The Group is keen to fulfil its corporate social responsibility
and actively participates in community services wherever
appropriate and financially feasible. Looking ahead, we
would continue to explore opportunities for collaborations
with third parties in community contribution.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

The Group strives to adopt the best practices in the
property development business. We aim at maintaining
high standards in provision of goods and services through
active supply chain management and product assurance.

LR ES iR

Knowledge trainings Customers relationship trainings
N & R &

e Project and sales management

e Sustaining customer
relationships

e Issues on railways around e Handling disagreements with

customers
o HFRER G
o RIEEZERNDIL

N B _BFE 46% 2 BEME T RIZ% 2L
METCDESEIN M35%2EEEBKR100%
ZHIBABEEBSEIN - FR SLETITHF
B A3 61/\E-o

tESH

rEBRLOETEEHEEE - EBEAMD
AHANBERTEHBBELERDT BERK
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RIF- B RERHRS

Supplier Management

To ensure the delivery of high-quality commodities, the
Group has maintained a stable and close relationship with
its business partners and customers.

The selection of suppliers and contractors is in accordance
with a list of key criteria, including track record, financial
strength, quality standards, ESG performance and ethical
integrity. To fulfill our commitments in quality control,
social and environmental responsibility, internationally
recognised certifications such as I1SO 9001, I1SO 14001 and
OHSAS 18001 are also highly valued and considered in the
selection process.

The Group continuously engages with its suppliers and
contractors and enters into well-defined agreements and
contracts to maintain the provision of high-quality goods
and services. Terms and conditions listed out in contracts
ensure all suppliers meet our standards as expected. We
also regularly monitor and evaluate their performance,
which is recorded for future screening processes.

Aligning with our corporate values, contractors are required
to fulfill corporate responsibility in their operations.
Regarding environmental obligations, agreements are made
with contractors to minimise construction disturbance and
potential risks caused to nearby communities. To maintain
occupational safety and quality, provision of worker
training and establishment of quality award system are also
encouraged, for achieving high standards of contractual
requirements.

Product Responsibility

As a responsible property developer, the Group is
committed to offering products and services of top-
class quality and great user experience. To assure product
quality, we enhance performance of our contractors by
comprehensive selection and approval processes. Inspection
and evaluation of property development quality are based
on criteria such as construction standards, hygienic and
safety conditions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Product Assurance

The Group maintains close relationships with our
contractors and ensures quality assurance throughout the
construction period. Before construction commencement,
our contractors establish specialised construction
management agencies in charge of on-site operations and
conditions. Construction permit and commencement report
are obtained upon setting up supervision procedures.

RIB LB RERHRS

EdtRiE

FEERAOHERERHG BRREEARSE
BERNEEMRE R IR HFNKE®HIL
FFMNEREERB AaERGEE RN -
FIEEERF®R ESKIFRERMAIR
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Quality assurance in construction projects

BEIREERE

Contractors

e Make agreements with the
Group regarding construction
standards

e Set up supervision procedures
of high quality and safety
standards

e Establish management agencies
in charge of daily operations

AEH

c MERBELEAERENTZH

s REBRMEMZERENSE
BRERF

s NIUEBEEAEENEEKE

: Government Departments

The Group

e Ensure standards are met upon
project completion

e Assign supervisory engineers
who are responsible for
monitoring and addressing on-
site operational issues

TEHE

s REEHERET

cEAEERIRMABSEEREK
R IR IR 15 E S

e Perform inspection on standards including safety and environmental standards

BT &R PT

cMBEERIRIEREFIRE

A number of environmental protection, safety and quality
control measures are planned and implemented under
the supervision of appointed engineers. In case of any
recorded defects during the construction, we work with
our contractors for taking appropriate actions followed
by immediate re-examination. In addition, all national and
provincial standards are met upon project completion.

EETEMESRIREHRZERFR 2K
BEEB M- I 7EERBRE P sCEE /R
o ZRPEXEBSIFRINBERK AERY
BUETEE W BIRAREMBEBRR KX
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group has been enhancing customer satisfaction by
continuous ongoing engagement with customers and
providing responsive services. We endeavor to disclose
all necessary information to assist our customers in
making informed purchase decisions. Our customer
satisfaction is maintained in cooperation with qualified
property management companies. Customers are also
encouraged to provide feedback via our communication
channels. Looking ahead, we would continue to review our
performance and make improvements based on customers’
feedback.

Code of Conduct

The Group places great importance on upholding the
highest standards of ethics, honesty, openness and
accountability in the workplace. Employees at all level are
expected to follow stringent code of conduct with integrity,
impartiality and honesty.

Information Privacy

Customer information privacy and rights are protected
by adhering to relevant laws and regulations® While
making every effort for managing information disclosure
of property development projects, identity of employees
is not to be divulged without their consent, under normal
circumstances. During the year, we were not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

6 List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.
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Anti-corruption

The Group regards ethical integrity as the foundation of
success. In compliance with relevant laws and regulations’,
we strictly prohibit any form of corruption including
improper transfer of benefits and other unethical
behaviours from all employees.

-

Anti-
Corruption
Policy

RES

Suppliers
R

Employees

73]

For prevention of misconduct, employees are encouraged
to report any suspected cases of corruption under our
whistleblowing mechanism. Disciplinary actions including
termination are to be taken in case of malpractice or
misconduct offences upon investigations. Offences are also
reported appropriate authorities if there is any evidence
of criminal activities in breach of legal and regulatory
requirements. During the year, the Group was not aware of
any breach of laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering.

/ List of applicable laws and regulations available in Laws and
Regulations.

RIB LB RERHRS

R&5

FEBREERBSRINNESG - HFIETHE
BERRZEZR BERBERELBEEAER
WESTR BEAENN aBEREMEEE
BRITRA-

e Ensure the compliance of relevant laws and regulations

e Conduct investigations on suspected cases of misconduct

e Take disciplinary actions and inform responsible public regulatory
bodies where necessary

o FEMRETARRAERIER
o HRLITETHRARAE
PRERAC TR BR 20 HE Bt 7 a0 22 B A = B Ba B BR P

e Conduct selection based on past records of
ethical integrity
e Sign contracts or agreement with the Group

o RIFBEMSEEEETHE
o HAERERITAMNITE

Undergo regular anti-corruption training
Report suspected cases to senior managers as encouraged under the
whistle-blowing mechanism

AR R ESIE
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY BMEBRRE

2020 2019
k> <3 3 —E-hEF
Employee Total Headcount
(== A
By Geographical Distribution
e e AN il
Maoming 28 31
X%
Hong Kong 13 11
B
Total 41 44
wast
By Age
BEhe
<30 2 5
<305%
31-50 37 36
31-508%
>50 2 3
>507%
By Gender
el
Male 26 22
S
Female 15 22
pegis
By Educational Background
REEE=R
Degree or above 40 36
KRB E
High school or below 1 8
SV
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2020 2019

ZEIEHF —Z2-hF
By Employee Category
BB T 485
Management 23 32
EEE
Front line 18 12
Al 4R
Employee Turnover Rate
BT mAR
By Age
B F e
<30 3% 6%
<308%
31-50 11% 23%
31-50%%
>50 0% 10%
>505%
By Gender
gl
Male 3% 92%
Lk
Female 11% 5%
pegia
Employee New Hire Rate
METABE
By Age
BREHe
<30 0% 20%
<305%
31-50 3% 0%
31-50%%
>50 0% 0%
>505%

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF 59
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z_Z&FFR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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2020 2019

—ETHE —E-hE&F
By Gender
tdkdill
Male 3% 5%
LRk
Female 0% 0%
gl

Percentage of Employees Trained

RNETBDLE

By Gender

ool

Male 46% 18%
St

Female 93% 56%
pegi

By Employee Category

¥ETHE5]

Management 35% 16%
SIBfE

Front line 100% 92%
Al 4R

Average training hours 3.61 15.8
T EIRF

By Gender

gl

Male 2 7
S

Female 7 25
pegi

By Employee Category

¥ETHER

Management 1 6
BiEfE

Frontline 7 42
Al AR
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Safety

22

Environment
fi=pi=]

Safety Performance
LZRRIA
Work-related injuries
I8
Lost days due to work injuries
RTEBERAITIEBE
Work related fatalities
HTEBRANNmENR
Training on Occupational Health and Safety
B R R T 215
Total personal-times training
(ERNZEHERAE 2
Total training hours
AR 1 51| B 2K
Total Resources Consumption
BIRHFEEE
Electricity (kwWh)
(FERE)
LPG (kg)
RiEE#RR (F52)
Petrol (litre)
R (R )
Total energy consumption (GJ)
HRREFE (H£R)
Total energy intensity (GJ/m? floor area)
MEERE (FE STEHK—EBEER
Water (m?)
K (LK)
Water intensity (m3m? floor area)

KBE IAR/ BFAR-ERER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - ERERHRS

2020 2019
“EIZFE  ZENF

0 0

0 0

0 0

804 696
532 696
610,293 792,101
= 1,000
93,646 14,181
5,182 3,354
2.3 1.5
28,907 57,300
12.9 25.6
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2020 2019
“EIZFE  ZENFE

Greenhouse Gases Emissions

mERBBBIN

Total GHG emissions (tCOze) 736.7 674.5
MRAERBEIER B_atRES)

Scope | (tCOze) 249.1 40.8
#HE— (WE_FRES

Scope Il (tCOze) 487.6 633.88
#HEZ MB_FLRES

Emission intensity (tCOze/m? floor area) 0.3 0.2

HREE M_athESE STARK-EEER
Air Pollutants from Vehicles
BEWERSRY
NOx (kg) 16.06 0.21
ag|1t¥ (F5)
SOx (kg) 1.04 30.4
et (F52)
PM (kg) 1.34 2.81
f& 7 R (F52)
Waste
BEY)
General waste (Tonnes) 8.4 14.3
—AREEY) (AMR)
Community Donation (RMB ‘000) 0 200
HE BRARETT

8 Scope Il greenhouse gases emissions in 2019 is restated due to 8 B ZZ-NFHEREREHK HBRERN
the update of emission factor. eI AT -
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APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS BRERRER

Aspect
HBE

Emissions

e

Use of Resources
BIRER

Employment

(4

Health and Safety
REREZE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption
R&S

Laws and Regulations Section

ERRER E4- ]

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC Environmental
Management

(PEARENHIRIEREE) IRIREIE

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Air

Pollution
(REARENBEARSREAED

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Water Pollution
(FhE AR EMBEKTEEEZE)

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of

Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes
(REARENHERBEY S RIRIER G E)

Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment
(PEARENFIRIBEZETEE)

Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy Environmental
Management
(GEIN=ET [l oF S 12 15

Labor Law of the PRC Our people and Community
(PEAREMESEE) EMNBEIRMtE

Labor Contract Law of the PRC
(PEARHENMESSHEEE)

Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor
BRUEGEREIRE)

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

BB (BRI

Production Safety Law of the PRC Health and Safety
(PEAREMNEZZEEZE) REREZ S

Regulations on the Quality Management of Quality Assurance
Construction Projects
(R IREEEEIERM) B8R

i
ko

Criminal Law of the PRC Anti-corruption
(REAREMEMZE) k&5
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are engaged in (i) property
development and investment; and (i) trading of raw sugar.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments
and geographical segments for the Year is set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in this
annual report on pages 94 to 211. The Board does not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MARKET
OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTUS

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and
a discussion on the Group's future business development
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 5 to 12 of this annual report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including market risk, credit
risk, and liquidity risk. The risk management policies and
practices of the Group are shown in notes 40 and 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group commits to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting
in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction.

The Group also commits to the principle and practice of
recycling and reducing. To help conserve the environment,
it implements green office practices such as re-deployment
of office furniture as far as possible, encourage use of
recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided
printing and copying, reduce energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings, air conditioning and electrical
appliances. Details for the environmental policies and
performance of the Group during the Year are set out on
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
44 to 63.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.
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Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the Year, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Articles, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duties in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's ordinary share
capital and share options are set out in notes 30 and 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" and “CONNECTED TRANSACTION” of this
annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into
by the Company during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 98 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at
31 December 2020, including the share premium less
the accumulated losses of the Company, available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2019: Nil).

Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The reserves of the
Company available for distribution further depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries.

Report of Directors

EFEHS

BAREERE

REMANRBAEESE TEAMELRBE
BZRE UBERBMAMHRARRIZE
REEBIEITARB ZHRK D

BBE - hENER EHES

REFEE > XRBHEEFANE QB HERS
ANHEHBERERARAT RN

s
AEARAEE BEEDHEBERNEER
FoSEZ A MEEBES-

AR

R_E_TEF+_RA=+—H REHEHS
NEEZRXEFAE  ARABLEIHDIKZH
HykFEE (BEAQRTDRMDEZERRSER)
(ZE-NEFF§) -

RERESEEEEN RNMEZENDETERAF
RR-EEBEZDIKKREEBRRTKEME
EHRBBEBBRETPIBPZEH - cR28H
HORZFERE-—TEBORRERIWE R T
Al DIk ZBR S o

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-FHFiR

67



68

Report of Directors

EFEHRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group's total revenue
for the Year.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during the Year is as
follows:

TERRRMED

FEBLATREGEEEBEIORETERR
REEZRWTmE30%

REAFEE AEETEHEBRBERBLEFE
mE

Percentage of
the Group’s total

purchases

EAEE

HaTRRERE

Bt

The largest supplier RAMER 88%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate h RHERmARST 99%

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the total number of the Company’s
shares in issue) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the report date are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

Mr. Chen Weijiang (appointed on 3 January 2020)
Ms. Li Jiansheng (resigned on 3 January 2020)

Mr. Liu Feng, Mr. Lau Sai Chung and Mr. Poon Lai Yin
Michael shall retire from office by rotation pursuant to
article 87(1) of the Articles, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 13
to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed term.
Each of the executive Directors may receive double pay
and discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion having
regard to the operation results of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
and Mr. Chen Weijiang, has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed under the section “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in this annual report, no Director
had a significant beneficial interest, either direct or indirect,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a party at
any time during the Year.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael,
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Mr. Chen Weijiang, an
annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors consider that:

the related party transactions related to the remuneration
of directors and other members of key management
as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules; and

the related party transactions related to the purchase of
raw cane sugar from China Sugar as disclosed in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements constituted the
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and accordingly is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 2 September 2020 (after trading hours), the Company
and Ming Hung Fung Company Limited (#%/EZHRA
@]), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability (the “Subscriber”), entered into the subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, 72,000,000 subscription shares (after
share consolidation on 20 October 2020) at HK$1 per
subscription share (after share consolidation on 20 October
2020).

Mr. Liu Dong (“Mr. Liu”), who is the 15% shareholder
of Maoming Shang Cheng Real Estate Company Limited*
(% EHBEERAT) (a subsidiary company of
the Company)(the “Subsidiary”), is the sole director and
shareholder of the Subscriber. Therefore, the Subscriber
is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level according to Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the subscription constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A.07(1) of
the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other current or prior
relationship, negotiation, understanding, agreement or
arrangement (verbal or written) between the Company (its
connected persons and their respective associates) with any
of the Subscriber and Mr. Liu.

Save as the subscription and the very substantial acquisition
disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24 January 2020,
the Company has no other business plans with Mr. Liu or
the Subscriber.

* For identification purpose only
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The Board has considered other fund-raising alternatives
before resolving to the subscription, including but not
limited to bank borrowings and issue of new shares by
other means. However, in comparison to the subscription,
bank borrowings would result in additional interest burden
and higher gearing ratio of the Group. The Group had
approached banks in both the PRC and Hong Kong who
were either unable to offer the requested facilities, or
had offered high interest rates of around 10%-12%. In
relation to the issue of new shares by other means such
as rights issue or placing, the Group has discussed with
several underwriters and was advised that either it would
be difficult for them to place the shares of the Company in
the current market conditions or they would charge a high
commission of approximately 10% of the total proceeds,
which would incur significant costs for the Group. In view
of the above, although there would be dilution in the
interests of the existing shareholders after completion of
the subscription, the Board still considered raising funds by
way of the subscription to be more cost effective, efficient
and beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a
whole as compared to raising funds by any other means.
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Mr. Liu has operated and invested in various businesses
in the PRC which include property construction projects,
sales and trading of building materials with major PRC
constructors and other private equity investments since
2012. As advised by Mr. Liu, these experiences raised
his interests in further investments in the PRC property
development business. As advised by the Mr. Liu and Mr.
Liu Feng, chairman of the Board, they became acquainted
through business gatherings, where Mr. Liu learned more
about the Group’s business, specifically in relation to
property development in tier two and tier three cities in
Guangdong. Mr. Liu became increasingly interested in
exploring joint investment opportunities with the Group. As
such, the Board invited Mr. Liu and another independent
third party to form a company, namely Maoming Shang
Cheng Real Estate Company Limited* (7%%& _E# B XA R
/A8)) for the Land Acquisition. For further details, please
refer to the Company'’s circular dated 24 January 2020. As
disclosed in the Company'’s interim results announcement
dated 28 August 2020 for the six months ended 30 June
2020, the Company’'s amounts due to non-controlling
interests is RMB73,700,000, out of which approximately
RMB33,000,000 represents Mr. Liu’s contribution to the
consideration for the Land Acquisition in proportion to
his 15% shareholding in the Subsidiary in the form of
shareholder’s loan which is non-interest bearing and
unsecured.

* For identification purpose only
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As the Group’s major assets are property projects in
Maoming and Mr. Liu has an optimistic view in the
potential of the Maoming property market, Mr. Liu further
approached the Group for share investments, which led to
subsequent discussion and agreement on the subscription.
Aside from the Subscriber, the Board had also approached
(i) the existing substantial shareholder of the Company,
namely China Sugar Holdings Limited; and (ii) a minority
shareholder of the Subsidiary, however neither had
imminent plan to subscribe for the Company's shares.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that the issue of subscription shares
can provide the Company with access to additional funds
to enhance its working capital and strengthen its capital
base and financial position for the future development.
The terms of the Subscription Agreement (including the
subscription price) were arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and the Subscriber,
taking into account the market price of the existing shares.
The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that the Subscription Agreement
(including the subscription price) are entered into upon
normal commercial terms and, based on the prevailing
market conditions, that the Subscription Agreement
(including the subscription price) are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 2 September 2020, 16 October 2020, 20
October 2020 and 30 December 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 23 September 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 22 January 2018, Techwayson Trading Limited
("Techwayson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) with China Sugar, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, for purchase of raw cane sugar from China
Sugar. On 14 February 2018, Techwayson and China Sugar
entered into a supplement agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to supplement and amend certain terms
of the Master Agreement. The Master Agreement dated
22 January 2018 as supplemented and amended by
the Supplemental Agreement dated 14 February 2018
(the “Revised Master Agreement”) has been approved
by independent shareholders of the Company at the
Company'’s extraordinary general meeting convened on 21
March 2018.

Pursuant to the Revised Master Agreement, Techwayson
agreed to purchase raw cane sugar from China Sugar for a
term of thirty four (34) months, from 1 March 2018 to 31
December 2020 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to the Revised Master Agreement, China Sugar
and Techwayson shall enter into specific contract(s), which
shall set out the details, including but not limited to the
unit price of the raw cane sugar, quality specification,
origin, packing, payment terms and destination. Detailed
terms and conditions for the continuing connected
transaction shall be governed by the specific contract(s)
to be entered into between Techwayson and China Sugar
pursuant to the Master Agreement.

During the Year, there is no purchases of raw cane sugar by
the Group from China Sugar Holdings Limited.

China Sugar is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Zhongxiang,
the executive Director. Accordingly, China Sugar, Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang and Mr. Liu Feng are the connected persons
to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules and
the transaction under the Revised Master Agreement
constitutes continuing connected transaction on the part of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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In view of the Group's plan to further expand its business
in trading of raw cane sugar, the entering into of the
Revised Master Agreement between Techwayson and China
Sugar will strengthen the existing business and secure the
procurement of sugar trading business of the Group and in
turn increase the revenue of the Group.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, have reviewed the said continuing connected
transaction and considered that (i) the Revised Master
Agreement was entered into in the ordinary business and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) the Revised
Master Agreement was entered into on normal commercial
terms after arm’s length negotiation; and (iii) the terms of
the Revised Master Agreement are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

For the details, please refer to the (i) announcement
dated 22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018; (ii) circular,
notice of extraordinary general meeting and proxy form
dispatched on 6 March 2018 and (iii) poll results of
extraordinary general meeting dated 21 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant related
party transactions and connected transactions entered into
by the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics, and approved by the Board.

Details of the related party and connected party
transactions are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (1) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (2) which are required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(3) which are required, pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Report of Directors
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§$ﬁ?$ﬁﬂﬂﬁ1ﬁ&$ﬁ R B 53 HO 188 2 B 33

RIEBEZZEF+_A=+—H ARFAZESE
HEETHRABRETRATDKREEBREZE (E&
REFRAERGEXVE) V%D BRI RS
HEFTEA(REEF R EFRA EXVER
BIRSDMAN G AR AB R B RFT 2 Em K
HE (BREBEZESRAEHEEA BRI
RABREREZRDTIXE) 5 HQ)VALAR
BRSMIAERAIE3IS2HFRBERULNET LM
Bmk®E  HG)REFETRMABNE
NERBMRFrzEmRHBENT

Approximate
percentage
of the total

Number of number of

underlying shares of

Number of shares held the Company

ordinary pursuant to in issue

share(s) share options ERAE

Capacity/Nature of held IRIRRE AR 217k

Name of Directors interests Fris FHENER FEEIGpAES

EHS 51/ A EERYUE BB EEL

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang Beneficial owner - 1,500,000 0.59
A BHTE BaEEA (Note 1)
(FfszE1)

Interest of 24,210,526 - 9.51

a controlled corporation (Note 2)
REF AR NER (fizE2)

Mr. Liu Feng Beneficial owner - 400,000 0.16
ABEE EaEEA (Note 1)
(FazE1)

Mr. Chen Xian Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.39
BRERE EEBEEA (Note 1)
(FfizE1)
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Approximate

percentage
of the total
Number of number of
underlying shares of
Number of shares held the Company
ordinary pursuant to in issue
share(s) share options AT
Capacity/Nature of held IR E BEITRG
Name of Directors interests s FENER B RIBEAY
EEfL g/ Emitk EERHE Rin#E Bt
Mr. Lau Sai Chung Beneficial owner - 800,000 0.31
AEREE BEnlEA (Note 1)
(k1)
14,800 - 0.01
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael Beneficial owner - 100,000 0.04
BRELE BREBA (Note 1)
(M3E1)
Mr. Char Shak Ngor Stephen Beneficial owner - 100,000 0.04
BHREE BmEBA (Note 1)
(MzE1)
Notes: Mk -
1. These shares of the Company represent the share options 1. ZERNBRMPARRERTIN _E—tELH+=

granted by the Company on 13 July 2017 under the old share
option scheme of the Company and adjusted as a result of
the share consolidation on 20 October 2020.

These shares of the Company are held by China Sugar
Holdings Limited which is 100% owned by Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
China Sugar Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company nor
their associates had any interest or short position in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under 352 of the SFO or notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) has interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.
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FERR

RIEZZEF+_A=+—H EFEXUT
AL (BFERBDEFHETETHRABIN BKE
NERMBERROPHEEERI XS > MR
BESRBERAEXVEE2R3IDEAEBAN
NEWE > WL AR RBREZSF R AERA
EIHZRERAFEZETERRELMA -

Long position in ordinary shares REBERZIFE
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
underlying number of
Number of shares held shares of
ordinary pursuant to the Company
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests share(s) held share options in issue
RERERE (GERRERT
EEZ =gz RIPHEER
TERREL A g/ #uEtE FsgERHME Rir8E BAEaL
Ming Hung Fung Company Limited Beneficial owner 72,000,000 - 28.29
HEBEERAH BEnlEEA
Liu Dong Interest of a controlled corporation 72,000,000 - 28.29
(Note 1)
S SR ABINER (MEE1)
China Sugar Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 24,210,526 - 9.51
FEIEEERERAT ETHEAA
Guangdong Nanyue Bank Person having a security 24,210,526 -
First Direct Branch* interest in shares (Note 2) 9.51
BREERTRNBRAR mERNZEREGZZAL GEZ)
F—EBXT
Chen Qiang Beneficial owner 14,950,000 - 5.87
[T BGEEA
* For identification purpose only
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Notes:

1. These shares of the Company are held by Ming Hung Fung
Company Limited which is 100% owned by Mr. Liu Dong. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu Dong is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Ming Hung Fung Company
Limited.

2. China Sugar Holdings Limited has provided a share charge in
respect of the 24,210,526 shares (after share consolidation on
20 October 2020) held by it in favour of Guangdong Nanyue
Bank First Direct Branch*.

*  For identification purpose only

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who,
as at 31 December 2020, had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The old share option scheme, which was adopted by the
Company on 30 November 2009, was terminated and a
new share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 May
2019. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing from the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme from 29 May 2019 (the “Date
of Adoption”) (that is from 29 May 2019 to 28 May 2029).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to the participants who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have made or may make
contribution to the Group or any invested entity as well
as to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees
and to provide them with a direct economics interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.
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The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group) options
to subscribe shares in the Company, subject to a maximum
of 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the adoption date and as at the approval date of
refreshment from time to time, excluding for this purpose
shares issued on the exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the Board and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, (i) the average of the closing price of the shares
guoted on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the grant date and
(i) the closing price of the shares on the grant date.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee of the Share
Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within 21 days
from the date of grant. The exercise period of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board upon granting the options but in any event must
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Share Option Scheme. The Board may seek approval
by the shareholders of the Company at general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number of
shares available for issue under exercise of options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme in these
circumstances must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshment of the 10% limit.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and the old share option scheme
of the Company is 24,646,905 shares (after share
consolidation on 20 October 2020) of the Company,
representing approximately 9.69% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time and the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue for the
time being in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of offer of the grant.

During the Year, no share option was lapsed, cancelled and
exercised.
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Details of the share options movements during the Year RAFE EEREFIET 2 BRESEF
under the old share option scheme are as follows: BUWF
Number of share options
EREHE
Exercise Exercise
Price (HKS) Price (HKS)
Date of during during Balance Granted Balance
grant of 11112020 20/10/2020 Exercise as at during Adjusted on as at
Name or category of grantees  share options 10 19/10/2020  to 31/12/2020 Period  Vesting Period 1112020 the Year 20/10/2020 31/12/2020
Sk k-3
-f-HE  tHAItHE
ZE0EE ZE0EE
tB+hB  +ZA=+-A k33 Q33
) i TR TR —-A-H B RIEZRE +ZRZT-H
#R AR NER ERRERS (A7) (B¥7) T BES 268 FEERY TRCtAER 268

Executive Director and beneficial owner
of a substantial shareholder of the Company

AARHTESRIERRZ REREA

Liu Zhongyiang 13712017 025 250 13702017 - N/A 15,000,000 - (13,500,000) 1,500,000
12712022 TEE

Directors

g%

Liu Feng 13712017 025 250 13712017 - N/A 4,000,000 - (3,600,000) 400,000
12712022 BB

9

Chen Xian 13702017 025 250 13702017 - N/A 10,000,000 - 9,000,000) 1,000,000
127022 TER

RE

Lau Sai Chung 13712017 025 250 13712017 - N/A 8,000,000 - (7,200,000) 800,000
1271022 TEE

s

Poon Lai Yin Michael 1370017 025 250 13702017 - N/A 1,000,000 - (900,000) 100,000
1277022 TER

B2

Char Shak Ngor Stephen 13712017 025 250 13702017 - N/A 1,000,000 - (900,000) 100,000
1271022 TER

5%

Former Director

nfEES

Li iansheng 13712017 025 250 130712017 - N/A 1,000,000 - (900,000) 100,000
1271022 TEE

TEE

Xia Dan 1370017 025 250 13712017 - N/A 5,000,000 - (4,500,000) 500,000
12712022 TER

Xia Dan

Other employees

HftlEg

In aggregate 1371017 025 250 13702017 - N/A 19,000,000 - (17,100,000) 1,900,000
1277022 TER

af

Total 64,000,000 - (57,600,000) 6,400,000

i3
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under
age of 18) to have any right to subscribe for securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Director had interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules,
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the Year with the Code Provisions of CG Code
except the deviation of Code Provision E.1.2. Details of the
Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this annual
report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent event
after the reporting period and up to the date of this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge or its Directors
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020, there
has no change in information of the Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

On Behalf of the Board

Liu Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BAZREMER S

L BE) « BERITBSIENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e OItte EBLiEB8H 35/F One Pacific Place
® AoES— 88 Queensway

=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
PEERERARAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 94 to 211, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter

MEEZER

VRS IR

REZER

REXRMANEEHE  AREZFRAEME
RARBGEEYBRETRAEEZEEH &
FEEDPREAMEBEZERG O BRRKE
REMAHENERFETEE MAMAISH
ZEFHEEHBBHNER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

MR EZPEEZER

Revenue recognised from sale of properties

MR E TR 2 W

We identified revenue recognised from sale of properties
as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and there is judgement involved
in determining the appropriate point at which to recognise
revenue from sales of properties.

AN EREERD 2 W aHGaBmRk 2 E2M RN
MEE DY EHE W m 2 BE SRR R E > IR
PYEHEMT 2 Wm B AR EZEE

The Group's revenue from sale of properties for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB246 million, representing approximately 89% of
the Group’s total revenue. As disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements, revenue from sale of
properties is recognised when the development of the
relevant properties have been completed and the control of
the completed property is transferred to the customer.

BE_Z_THF+_R=+—HLEFE> SEEYE
HE 2 WA AR E5246,000,0007T 0 1 EEELEU

mHI89% o LN AR & M FS IR M FESPTINER » W) IHE
WEN R ERERYE R T I X EhIEE &S
FER-

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from
sale of properties included:

REBERAMYEHERI a2 BF 8

Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
Group's internal control over the process of revenue
recognition of sale of properties; and

TR SEEARMYEHEERIWERE
Pz NEREETE ; &

Assessing whether the criteria for the delivery of
properties have been fulfilled by checking, on a
sample basis, to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements, the relevant completion certificate for
construction work, as well as the delivery notices
issued by the Group to the buyers to assess whether
the control of properties is transferred to the buyers.
RIGEAETEEIYENRERSEREES
WENGER REIRERAATHEEUR 8%
EaTaEETREESEBETERMAER
FEHRABRIER
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BAZREMER S

Key audit matter

FRELEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

MARBEZPEEZER

Valuation of investment properties

REWMFEZMEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with significant judgements associated with
determining the fair value. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group's investment properties in People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) amounted to RMB74,400,000. A loss
arising from fair value change on investment properties
of RMB10,518,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020.

AR B EEREERR BRI EEE R EE
ERMERAZEXRAES  RMFREMEZGHEHR
ARBEEZEE N _T-_EF+_A=+—H> &
EERPEARAME (THEL) 2BREVER/ARTE
74,400,000t BE—E " ZF+_H=+—HILFE>
ERNGEEaRABSRENEZZ ANEEHELEZES
#BAR10,518,0007T °

These investment properties are stated at fair value
determined based on a valuation carried out by an
independent professional property valuer (the “Valuer”).
The fair values of investment properties are derived using
investment approach. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
and details of the valuation technique and key inputs and
data used in the valuation are disclosed in notes 4 and 14
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. The
valuation of investment properties is dependent on certain
key inputs and data, including term yield, reversionary yield
and unit rent.

ZEREMETVRBEB L EXEY E(LEM (MGER) &
TZHEREEANBIR REMEZ AREER
BRELET (At T ABRARZ T2 RR KA E M F
BURGEMBZEZ2BAEBREEDHIRERGSR

BRERNEAR14 - KREMEZHERCRRNETIEH A
BEREE BECHR T B m M~ EUEE-
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

BRPERKREMEZEEZEFEE !

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

SHEEEMZBERE SENMTEM |

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation; and
THAERNLER - METHBHNRE FTER
AExRkEZ2HABMBNABEGHEZBEEL
RASRIE A EBIM S 5 K

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the valuation

methodology, assumptions, key inputs and data,
including term vyield, reversionary yield and unit
rent, adopted by management and the Valuer
to entity-specific information and market data
for a selection of investment properties to assess
the appropriateness of these judgments and
estimations.
L EEEREEMERFEEBER kT HEE
FRERAMGER E - BR - FTEHABREE (8
EEMR G ERWEREMAEE) 25E% U
EEREY R TEZF AR5t 2B E



Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

FRELEIE

VRS IR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

MARBEZPEEZER

Valuation of properties held for sale

FIELEMEZ(HE

We identified the valuation of properties held for sale
(the "PFS”) as a key audit matter as it is significant to
the consolidated financial statements and significant
judgements are involved in the determination of the net
realisable value (the “NRV") of the PFS.
HRFREEZYE ((FEREY X)) 2HhEHES
MBBRERZBEEERNEERIFLEYE R FE
(TP IR3ME]) B B A E > A E BB %R 5
BIZFEEH

The Group's PFS of approximately RMB603 million are
situated in the PRC as at 31 December 2020 as disclosed
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. The
management of the Group determined the NRV of the PFS
with reference to the valuation performed by the Valuer
and recent sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, the legal and regulatory framework
and general market conditions.
RZEZEFEF+-_A=+—H> EEBNARE
603,000,000 c 2 FHIELEMEMNHE (FHUWEGE
MBMRNF18FIKE) - EEREEEETHFE
HEYEZIERFERFSELEMETZMEER
BBIMEERZ MAEHEEXR ZRREEE
MU RERT R

Our procedures in relation to valuation of the PFS
included:

BPMBEBERIFLRENEZEEZREFEE !

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

SHEEEMZBERE - BHOREEN

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation; and

BLER T L ER A - METBRR IR
BEABKR - EHEMRAZEIEZEUABREEZE
RAVE RS 5 F*

Assessing the management’s estimation of the NRV
of the PFS, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling prices of the PFS to the recent
sales transactions in the same project and in nearby
location, rate of new property sales, the legal and
framework and general market condition, based
on our understanding of the Group’s business and
operation and our research on the PRC real estate
industry.

RMGEE BAHILRFHEMERGEEBA
HEEBKREEIREER S MY EHER A
BREEERKERD R REXMY E&£EH
EBREENTRURBRMSPEEMETEN

it o
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BAZREMER S

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

VRS IR

BEEEREREEEE EEBEZUFTHER
B e
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i RYR e ClE S

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tsz Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021

VRS IR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
FeEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
B ey
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AREFT ARETF T
Revenue Wz 5 275,541 804,898
Cost of sales SHE A (226,537) (624,556)
Gross profit E7) 49,004 180,342
Other income HAnk A 7 1,055 722
Impairment losses under expected credit HiEW R IETRIE B8
loss (“ECL") model on other receivables (IfafREERE) BB TZ
HESE (1,236) -
Fair value change on investment properties RENMEZ AREEE) 14 (10,518) (4,044)
Fair value change on financial assets BARBH AR MBEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss NREES 2,411 9)
Selling and marketing expenses HERSHER (2,733) (5,331)
Administrative expenses THEHR (29,861) (31,618)
Finance costs IESID%N 8 (830) (1,101)
Profit before taxation BRI AT A 7,292 138,961
Income tax expense PSRRI 9 (14,503) (54,603)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (E518) &7 10 (7,211) 84,358
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: NTFREER (B8 af
Owners of the Company ERBHEBA (7.775) 74,184
Non-controlling interests JEEE R 564 10,174
(7,211) 84,358
(Restated)
C<E2T)
(Loss) earnings per share (in RMB cents) B (58 B (ARESD) 13
- Basic —EK (4.26) 40.66
- Diluted —#E (4.26) 40.66
94 CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED =E LREMAERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE

nTI:|

Ez LthEEWNm R

CEE+ A=+ —BLEE

2020 2019
—E-% .y
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFTT
(Loss) profit for the year FR (5B8) &7 (7,211) 84,358
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hthz2m (®) Wi
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: RS EHFEEEm 2B .
Exchange differences arising on translation of leIﬂﬁﬁfémr%Tﬁlﬁﬁjfﬂfémn%gﬂi
functional currency to presentation currency VERER (1,249) 2,555
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to REGEEM B EBm 2 BE .
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of l?ﬁﬂ BN EBZMBRREEZ
financial statements of foreign operations RELE 2,928 (2,335)
1,679 220
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year ~ER2E (Fix%) Wz#E%E (5.532) 84,578
Total comprehensive (expense) income BUR G _TJEE (Fx2)
attributable to: W 5 4R RE
Owners of the Company /NG %ﬁﬁ A (6,096) 74,404
Non-controlling interests Elilleg 564 10,174
(5,532) 84,578
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBIRRR

At 31 December 2020 R -ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
— v —_= ﬂE > _jlg
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
sz AR®BFT ARETT
Non-current Assets ERHEE
Investment properties KEME 14 74,400 84,918
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB REE 15 16,643 18,373
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 337 1,573
91,380 104,864
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories F&5 17 = 22,742
Properties under development a2y 18 253,395 -
Properties held for sale FIEHEYZE 18 602,714 806,611
Deposits, other receivables and & Hh R IE &
prepayments SEUNETE] 19 26,604 118,864
Financial assets at fair value through BrnE quJ\?EﬁﬁZ
profit or loss MHBEE 20 6,402 12
Tax recoverable EIEIG ] 26,620 34,683
Restricted bank deposit BIRHIERITEM 21 22 896
Pledged bank deposits BIEFIRITER 22 11,486 31,285
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRIEE 22 77,848 63,528
1,005,091 1,078,621
Current Liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B2 RAMENRIE 23 59,088 98,290
Contract liabilities aHasE 24 74,154 255,620
Loan payables BT ERR 25 8,420 14,389
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaE—REILD 26 340 1,228
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE A< JE =51 M 8 7 TR 0B 27 85,000 15,994
Amount due to a director FEtEEHIAE 34 6,624 3,139
Tax payable FEIRIA 72,228 63,489
Bank overdrafts RITHEL 22 4,039 -
Secured bank borrowings BIRRIRITER 28 9,150 1,776
319,043 453,925
Net Current Assets MENEEEE 686,048 624,696
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities WEEMTEAR 777,428 729,560
Non-current Liabilities ERENEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEaE—ERHE D 26 21 384
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEASE 29 34,224 40,599
34,245 40,983
Net Assets BEFE 743,183 688,577
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sRE MR

At 31 December 2020 P Z_E_ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
ZEITHE 2 —hEF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
e ARBTFRT ARETT
Capital and Reserves BAXRKi#E
Share capital A& 7 30 222,157 161,569
Reserves 1 463,311 469,857
Equity attributable to owners of NABER NELREE
the Company 685,468 631,426
Non-controlling interests JEREHI R 57,715 57,151
Total Equity 4T 743,183 688,577
The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 211 FURNBZHEEMBRARENR IS —F
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of A=t HESESHERMEETIZETLAHUTA
Directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf THREE !
by:
Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Lau Sai Chung
BlgefE 2t R EE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

n\7r\ *Eﬁﬁ&@]ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

—EE+C A=+ —BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

TR 2R NEL

Share Non-

Share Share  Translation options  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
i RiVEE hERE ERERR RHER it RIS Lh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR  ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETx ARETR AR%ETn ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-F-H 161,569 578,990 (42,326) 5481 (146,692) 557,022 36,477 593,499
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 74,184 74,184 10,174 84,358

Exchange differences arising on ARDEERETA

translation of functional currency IEREL 7 ERER

to presentation currency - - 2,555 - - 2,555 - 2,555
Exchange differences arising on RBEEINERZ

translation of financial statements of ~ BHRRELZEREE

foreign operations - - (2,335 - - (2,335 - (2,335
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEWFEE - - 220 - 74,184 74,404 10,174 84,578
Capital injection by non-controlling ~~ FEERKRERMLERE

shareholders upon establishment of ~ MIBATETE

a non-wholly owned subsidiary (By5137)

(note 37) - - - - - - 10,500 10,500
At 31 December 2019 PRIE-nE+ZA=1+-H 161,569 578,990 (42,106) 5,481 (72,508) 631,426 57,151 688,577
(Loss) profit for the year £ (B8) B - - - - (1,775) (1.775) 564 (1211
Exchange differences arising on RRMEERAEA

translation of functional currency SIEHELVERER

to presentation currency - - (1,249) - - (1,249) - (1,249)
Exchange differences arising on REEEIER 2

trandlation of financial statements of  BIHREEZERER

foreign operations - - 2,928 - - 2,928 - 2,928
Total comprehensive income ERRENE () B8

(expense) for the year - - 1,679 - (7,775) (6,096) 564 (5,532)
Issue of new shares BEkG 60,588 - - - - 60,588 - 60,588
Transaction costs directly attributable ~ Z¥TH RN EHELR

to issue of new shares RBHE - (450) - - - (450) - (450)
At 31 December 2020 “BITET°B=1-H 2,157 578,540 (40,427) 5,481 (80,283) 685,468 57,715 743,183
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—EI%F “Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEF
Profit before taxation FRF2 AT = A 7,292 138,961
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME-BERZEITE 838 961
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESERE 1,210 810
Impairment losses under ECL model on other B EEBEENIETH
receivables HAEWRIE 2 BEE1E 1,236 -
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value ~ 2A A ESHAERR
through profit or loss MBEEZ ANEEH (2,411) 9
Fair value change on investment properties KEMEZ RN AEEEF) 10,518 4,044
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR Z WiE (31) -
Finance costs CUE I EN 830 1,101
Interest income ISV ON (399) (722)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEHEIZ
working capital KERERE 19,083 145,164
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (Em) 22,742 (22,742)
Decrease in properties held for sale FFEH &Y 203,897 504,908
Increase in properties under development TEEZEEM (150,935) -
Increase in deposits, other receivables and & HtEIWRIE &
prepayments TEFRIEE N (11,503) (107,547)
Increase in financial assets BAREABTZ
at fair value through profit or loss BB EEN (4,109) -
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B Z R EMERRIE (R 18 (35,957) 26,666
Decrease in contract liabilities sH8aERD (181,466) (511,338)
Cash (used in) generated from operations &&E (FrA) FrRiRE (138,248) 35,111
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") B HEAREME (THE)
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") paid SR (TEEMER) (4,056) (6,753)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid BT P+ HIE(ER
(T ER ) - (27,774)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REES (FRA) SR FER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (142,304) 584
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KREEE
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR IRIRIRITER 55,450 23,187
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposit RINBRHIRITER 874 7,273
Interest received BUH R 399 515
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary HEMBABIRERAFE 18 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEIRIRIRITFR (35,651) (16,387)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME -KRERSZE (21) -
Payment for rental deposits (M EERE — (179)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHFRFREFHE 21,069 14,409
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

“EE+R=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—EIEFE —“TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A EEE
Advance from non-controlling interests JEITEHIE BT 71,506 15,994
Issue of new shares BITHRD 60,588
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITEMR 17,923 -
Advance from a director —REFBN 10,000 226
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIEITIEN (9,740) (10,058)
Repayment to directors BERESR (6,340) -
Repayment of loan BEEX (5,449) (22,537)
Repayment to non-controlling interests BEIFERIM S (2,500) -
Repayment of lease liabilities, fa%@%ﬁ% aE gEEEMNE
including lease interest (1,213) (840)
Interest paid [SERpARS (771) (1,043)
Transaction costs directly attributable ﬁ#ﬁﬁxfﬁﬁ?ﬁffﬁ X5 AN
to issue of new shares (450) -
Capital injection by non-controlling FERERRINRIIIEEE
shareholders upon establishment EARREE
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary - 10,500
New loan raised HMEEEX = 3,111
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEEBFRE (FRA) REEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 133,554 (4,647)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERFREEB/MZIENMNFEE
EQUIVALENTS 12,319 10,346
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEEs s & (2,038) 760
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZRERIAEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 63,528 52,422
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXRZREKRFEEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 73,809 63,528
Represented by: HAeE .
Bank balances and cash RITHEERIRE 77,848 63,528
Bank overdrafts RITES (4,039) -
73,809 63,528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

1.  GENERAL

China Uptown Group Company Limited (“the Company”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development
and investment as well as trading of raw cane sugar. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$") while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") for consistent
presentation as in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments®
Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions?
Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 — 20203

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate
to the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities: A practical
expedient is introduced for modifications required
by the reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted for
by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current
HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

o Hedge accounting requirements: Under the
amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued
solely because of the interest rate benchmark
reform. Hedging relationships (and related
documentation) are required to be amended to
reflect modifications to the hedged item, hedging
instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying criteria to
apply hedge accounting, including effectiveness
requirements; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (Continued)

o Disclosures: The amendments require disclosures
in order to allow users to understand the nature
and extent of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed to
and how the entity manages those risks as well as
the entity’s progress in transitioning from interbank
offered rates to alternative benchmark rates, and
how the entity is managing this transition.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) bank loan which may
be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant gains or losses should the interest
rate benchmark for the loan change resulting from the
reform on application of the amendments.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue from sales of properties

For revenue from sales of properties, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when control of completed property is
transferred to the customer, being at the point that the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Revenue from sales of properties (Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Revenue from trading of raw cane sugar

Revenue from the sale of raw cane sugar is recognised
at a point of time when the Group delivers the raw cane
sugar to the customer where its performance obligation is
satisfied and the customer obtains control of the raw cane
sugar.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Revenue from trading of raw cane sugar (Continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods
or services to be provided by the other party.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development and properties held for
sale

Properties under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties
for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost model
in accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use
assets, properties under development/properties for sale are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred
and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties, including
those held for sale, are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of warehouse that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of law-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9") and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as

at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group

is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset. Other than investment
properties measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised and included in
finance costs in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable and
such grants are presented as “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expenses or capitalised in
properties held for sale/properties under development,
where appropriate, when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share options reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same entity by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in HK$ and United States dollars to the
Group’s presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated
in the translation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.

3. g?gﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ&iggﬁﬁ

32 EZEHEE@E
HMBIR (#®)
HMEEE &

MBEEEZDERAEBE (@)

(i) #EARMEBUWA

HERBIERAFEZHFTEENFBERA
DBDERBBRAMEFEZTFUBEE -FEWATE
—EMBEERKREERBERA R T XU
B HEBREBHBEEERENUFEERSI]-
MEBREHREERENYBEEMS BT
—REHE FEBEWMATHYBEERHBENE
FERERANXFLUEI - HEREEHENY
BIENGCEERAREFE EHUBEETBHE
EERE MEEEEETBHREERER
ZHREPNBNE MERATDEBRHMBEE
MEEEERAERMEXTFLUER -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-FHFiR

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend earned on
the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including other receivables, restricted bank deposit,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

For all instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings or in case of other receivables, when the
amounts are past due, whichever occurs earlier. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects
to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
loan payables, amount due to a director and secured bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised

over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit or group of cash generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3.2, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have been in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. The Group’s investment properties are situated
in the PRC and the deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties are recognised taking into
account PRC LAT and PRC EIT payable upon sales of those
investment properties.

4. FARIGsHHERGSFHEBRENE
EXRIR

BOFE PR AR M 09w B BCE (WM EE3 .26 )
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LSt RBEARRDEFEEEER - G545
ST T AT RIEST R IR (HIETER &
Z AR » WHEFT HA R R R R AR (18 5] &2
BB R Do

M FE RS ST IBUCR B (F 2 BRI SR 7 R

UTRBERIE EIRESNEREAEERT
SAHERBRERFAFLERGESMBRENME

DBZEEAARERTEZMST ZHER -
R EHE ZEZRE

M EHERAAEEEAEZREYEFRN
EENELERBEGEMS  EFEBRTAEER
WREVMFEEGRBEAEBRTLEREYE
KB R EBEARLESERENERN
WK ESmAEmEEN -HIL  ReFEX
EERBEVEZRERBE BEFRR UL
AERANFENREYEZREENZBS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by an independent professional
property valuer.

In determining the fair value of the Group's investment
properties which are situated in the PRC, the valuer used
direct comparison approach by making reference to
comparable sales evidences as available in the relevant
market to reflect current market conditions for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the valuer has
adopted the investment approach for all properties that
are currently held for earning rental income and capital
appreciation.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties (Continued)

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Changes to the assumptions,
including the potential risk of possession of proper legal
title, changes in governmental policy direction and/or
mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
and data that are not based on observable market data,
such as term yield, reversionary yield and unit rent, to
estimate the fair value of investment properties. Detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
data and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of investment properties are set out in note 14.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
Group's investment properties was RMB74,400,000 (2019:
RMB84,918,000).

4. FARIGsHAERGSFHEBRENE
EXRR (%)

fEEt REARARE RN X Z KR (2
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¥ EmEEAANREET74,400,0000 (Z2—H
F . ANRM84,918,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC LAT

The Group is subject to PRC LAT in the PRC. The
provision of the PRC LAT is based on the management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual PRC LAT liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects. The Group has not
finalised its PRC LAT calculation with the tax authorities for
its property development projects. The final outcome could
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will impact the income tax expense
and the related income tax provisions in the period in which
such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made to the
Group’s properties under development, the directors of
the Company make reference to the valuation performed
by an independent professional property valuer and take
into consideration the current market environment and the
estimated market value prices (i.e. the estimated selling
price less estimated costs to sell) less estimated costs
to completion of the properties. An allowance is made
if the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value of properties
under development is less than expected as a result of a
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. At 31 December 2020, the
carrying amount of properties under development was
RMB253,395,000 (2019: Nil). No impairment has been
provided for both years.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties held for
sale

The management of the Group determines the net
realisable value of properties held for sale by using
prevailing market data such as most recent sales
transactions and internal estimates of cost based on quotes
from contractors. These estimates require judgement as
to the anticipated sale prices by reference to the valuation
performed by an independent professional property valuer
and recent sales transactions in the same project and in
nearby location, rate of new property sales, the legal and
regulatory framework and general market conditions. If the
actual net realisable value of properties held for sale is less
than expected as a result of changes in market conditions,
material provision for impairment losses may result. At 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of properties held for
sale was RMB602,714,000 (2019: RMB806,611,000). No
impairment has been provided for both years.

5. REVENUE
(i Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

An analysis of the Group’s revenue arising from the PRC
and Hong Kong for the year is as follows:

4. FAEGsFAERGSFHEBRENE
EXRR (%)
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5. W&
() EESHKEDIF

FEBFNREBFEREBZREZ DU T :

2020 2019
ZEIEE Z—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTr ARBT
Arising from the PRC IR B E]
Sales of properties MEHE
—a point in time —RFEL 246,450 754,819
Rental income HEUWA 1,428 1,668
Arising from Hong Kong =k
Trading of raw cane sugar [RENEE S
— a point in time —BFBh 27,663 48,411
275,541 804,898
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

REVENUE (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are based on standardised specifications
with no alternative use. Taking into consideration of
the relevant contract terms, the legal environment
and relevant legal precedents, the Group concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable
right to payment prior to transfer of control of the
relevant properties to customers. Revenue from
sales of properties is therefore recognised at a point
in time when the development of the relevant
properties have been completed and the control of
the property is transferred to the customer.

In general, the Group receives 30% of the contract
value as receipt in advance from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreement and
remaining 70% of the contract value would
be received through the banks by releasing the
mortgages to the customers in two to three months
after the agreement signing date. Such advance
payment schemes result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction
period for the full amount of the contract price.

For trading of raw cane sugar to third party
customers, revenue is recognised when control of
the goods has been transferred, being at the point
the customer obtains the control of the goods.
Payment of the transaction price is due according to
the payment terms agreed on the sales contracts.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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5. REVENUE (continued)

5. W= @&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

(iii)  Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) PEEFFANZHTEHNEENXRZE
performance obligation for contracts with

customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)

N _E_EF+_B=+—H DEEGHTRE
NEITNRZEB (RBFEXIBDKRBE) T8

as at 31 December 2020 and the expected timing of AR EREAT
recognising revenue are as follows:
2020 2019
—BIEg _ET—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT
Within one year A— R
— Salles of properties S/ES 74,154 235,620
— Trading of raw cane sugar —RERES - 27,116
74,154 262,736
(iv) Leases (iv) FHE
2020 2019
—BIEF _T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEFTT ARBTT
For operating leases with respect to MAEBKBEYEN
investment properties: KEHEMmMS !
Lease payments that are fixed BElEHE N 1,428 1,668
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. the executive directors of the Company) (the “CODM")
in order to allocate resources to the segments and assess
their performance.

The Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are identified as the follows:

o Property development and investment: this segment
primarily develops and sells office premises,
commercial, residential properties and car parking
spaces. This segment also generates rental income
from investment properties and achieves gain from
the appreciation in the properties’ values in the long
term. All the Group's activities in this segment are
carried out in the PRC.

o Trading of raw cane sugar: this segment trades raw
cane sugar on a worldwide basis.

Property development and investment and trading of raw
cane sugar also represent the Group’s reportable segments.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 E—

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4= A
i 3

==

==

6. SNHEH(E

() DERERER

AEBR WD RER

WEHWT o

A5 ER R MIEE

F+TRA=1T—HLEFE

ZAMBEERITRE D

BE_ET_-_EF+_-_A=+—BLEE

Property
development Trading of
and investment raw cane sugar Total
MERRKRKRE FEEES 1Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFR AREF N R
Revenue g 247,878 27,663 275,541
Segment profit pap: et 22,769 2,025 24,794
Other income HAA 922
Fair value change on BARBIHABEZ
financial assets at FVTPL HBEEZANEEE) 2,41
Finance costs A (662)
Unallocated corporate expenses Kok ATRY (20,173)
Profit before taxation BRI AR H 7,292
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHE_Z-NF+A=+—HILHFE
Property
development Trading of
and investment  raw cane sugar Total
MEEBRKRE REREES 1t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFT ARETF T AREFTT
Revenue W 756,487 48,411 804,898
Segment profit o ERER 155,459 947 156,406
Other income HAUA 515
Fair value change on financial asset at FVTPL A A B ARZZ
VHREEZ A ANER 9)
Finance costs FH A (1,101)
Unallocated corporate expenses ANEEABRAT (16,850)
Profit before taxation BRIS AR 138,961
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEN E
(@) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (a) ZDEIMEKRESR (&

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3.2. Segment profit represents the profit of each
segment without allocation of certain other income, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain finance
costs and unallocated corporate expenses (i.e. central
administration costs and directors’ emoluments). This is

the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

(b) NWEEKRER

FTEBEK
BY 35 1 ©

MEDB BT BRANEI 2T AEEE
StERMER - D WRAIEZ DB RDEETH
MBEA-RBRARESA BT ZVBEEZAR
BE2H - ETHUHERERRDEAEFHEZ (A
PROTBERAKRESEME) 2EM - ETHHRS
ERREBNERDE REHEFME

AEBEERERZDNMBERERKEE 7 EL

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: E=R 711
2020 2019
—EIEEFE —FT—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT
Segment assets DEEE
— Property development and investment — R ERGE 1,072,849 1,094,298
— Trading of raw cane sugar —EEEES 802 68,898
Unallocated corporate assets ROFCEEE
- Financial assets at FVTPL —BRARDEFABRZZUHFEE 6,402 12
— Bank balances and cash —iRITEERIRE 1,242 1,372
— Others —H1h 15,176 18,905
Consolidated total assets HEEBEEMRE 1,096,471 1,183,485
Segment liabilities Pk =KE
— Property development and investment —HEEEREE (328,330) (397,994)
— Trading of raw cane sugar —BEEES (712) (76,135)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBETEEE
— Loan payables —ENER (8,420) (11,277)
— Amount due to a director —ENESHNIE - (3,139)
— Tax payable —FEIRIB (227) -
— Secured bank borrowings —BIRIFRITER (9,150) (1,776)
— Bank overdrafts —iRITEZ (4,039) -
— Others —HAth (2,410) (4,587)
Consolidated total liabilities meaREE (353,288) (494,908)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to segments assets other than
certain deposits, other receivables and prepayments,
financial assets at FVTPL, certain bank balances and
cash and certain other assets; and

all liabilities are allocated to segments liabilities other
than certain other payables, loan payables, amount
due to a director, certain tax payable, secured bank
borrowings, bank overdrafts and certain other

6. SNHEH(E
(b) NWEERERE @)

mEESESZENDBRENDEE IR E
Ay

. fRETHRE HMBRRNEBEREMR
BE-BAREBESH A B zYHEEE &
TROEEFEARFEEURETEMEE
SNoFTEBEERDEEDMEE ; &

. fRETHMEBNMRE - BAER BN
EERE-ETEAMNRNE - AHRFIE?T
BR-RTBEIRETFHEMEESIN PR
FEERANEENHER-

liabilities.
()  Other segment information (0 HthospER
2020 TE-RHF
Property Trading
development of raw
and investment canesugar  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEERRRE FEREES KAE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE#ETT AR®TR AREFTR  ARETx®
Amounts included in the measure of SIENNERBESAZHE
segment profit or loss:
Impairment losses under ECL model HthEWHIBRBEES
on other receivables BEEABETZREHE 1,236 - - 1,236
Fair value change on investment properties ~ RE#MEZ AR EE 10,518 - - 10,518
Finance costs MBHA - 168 662 830
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% = KR EITE 385 - 453 838
Depreciation of right-of-use assets THREEERTE - 1,205 5 1,210
Amounts reqularly provided to the EHptELEREEIEHE
CODM but not included in the FEINGIELH B HIFE
measure of segment profit or loss:
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL %A #(Est ABE 2
MBEEZ AREZE - - (2.411) (2,411)
Bank interest income SRR B (259) ) s (266)
Other income HttA - (133) (656) (789)
Income tax expense FEmES 14,263 - 240 14,503
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)  Other segment information (Continued)

6. SNHEH(E

(0 EtaBEH

2019 —E-NF
Property Trading
development of raw
and investment cane sugar Unallocated  Consolidated
WEERRRE REEER N aft
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®TR ARETT  AR®T:
Amounts included in the meastre of SIEN S BERGFEHAZHE
segment profit or loss:
Fair value change on investment properties ~ RE#MEZ AR EE 4,044 - - 4,044
Finance costs MHHE - - 1,011 1,011
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% R KR ETE 514 - 447 961
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERTE 793 - 17 810
Amounts reqularly provided to the CODM — ERjm T ZA&ERZEEIEHE
but not included in the measure of FEINGIES B HIFE
segment profit or loss:
Fair value change on financial asset at FVTPL A fEst ABE 2
MBEEZ AREZE - - 9 9
Bank interest income BIFIEBA (305) - (210) (515)
Other income HtugA - (194) (13) (207)
Income tax expense FEMES 54,603 - - 54,603
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEN E

(d) Geographical information (d) HIEER

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all BE_ZE_ZFER_ZFE-NAF+_A=+—
of the Group's revenue and assets were derived from BEFE ARAEERE2BRAREETREB
customers and operations based in the PRC including URHE (BEEE) EATERI D) 2%
Hong Kong (by country of domicile) and accordingly, no PREB HUIME—PRBEAER ZHIBE
further analysis of the Group's geographical information is KL A7 o

disclosed.

(e) Information about major customers (e) EEXEFREHN

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REEFEXRBEHAEEERZTEMBE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group 10%NERZWmWT !
are as follows:

2020 2019
ZEITHE ZZ—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT
Customer A (Note) ZPA (i) 27,663 -
Note: Amount represented revenue generated from trading of Mz ZeEEREE_SZF+"B=+—HLEFE
raw cane sugar to this customer during the year ended 31 Eﬁﬁzgﬁ' L??FF#E%%%%ZH& i B & R E
December 2020 and this customer did not contribute any ECE-NF+A=+t—HLFEIERAELER
revenue of the Group in the year ended 31 December 2019. BRI
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HkA
2020 2019
—EBIBF “ZTNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARW®TT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR ZWHE 31 -
Bank interest income RITHI B WA 266 515
Government grant (Note) BT wEE) (BsD) 625 -
Other interest income HF B WA 133 207
1,055 722
Note: During the current year, the Group received and recognised st : RAFE > AEERBESEBBUFEHRZAMESTE
government grants of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") 702,000 B U ER T B SR AT A B B S (T ) 702,000t (18
(equivalent to RMB625,000) in accordance with the SR AR 625,0007T) ©
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WM
2020 2019
—ECEFE ENEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETT
Interest expenses on MERX
— bank borrowings —R1TEMR 225 514
— loan payable —BEMR 534 529
— lease liabilities ==k 59 58
— bank overdrafts —IR1TEXZ 12 -
Total borrowing costs HCEEE W 830 1,101
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FRSHRAXZ
2020 2019
TETEF ZE—NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETT
Current tax BPHERFR 18
Hong Kong B5HE 240 -
PRC EIT SlET eSS 12,575 49,449
PRC LAT FREL 4 3% (B R 8,063 20,396
20,878 69,845
Deferred taxation (note 29) EIEMIA (MI5E29)
Current year KEE (6,375) (15,242)
14,503 54,603
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as the Group's
assessable profits were wholly absorbed by tax losses
brought forward.

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
year ended 31 December 2020 under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the "EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision of PRC LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. PRC LAT has been provided at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

9. FriSIRAY &

RCE-NF=ZR-+—H BARAULEZEEBE
“E—EFERFH (BE]) (B75) HRAEZRE (TMF
PIEZ]) - H5I AWM BT FREGEZ - RGE
ER"_T-NF=ZB-_+/\BREmRHEE
THREBEHNEER REMRFMERESGE
BENREEBRE E2,000,0007T %R 1%
8.25% MR > MABB A 1E2,000,0007T & F #F
B16.5%RM - RTEaMAANESHREFIEZE
EERENSEEUR—RETI16.5%EMR -

AR AEERRAN N HEBNEBREEH
B WEE_Z—-—AEF+_HA=+—HLHF
ElEMEBNSRELERS-

BE_ ST _ZF+_AB=+—HIFEEIR
EMGAFESREFERSTENERMEL E
B AEREBREREE®2,000, oooy—z;ﬁﬁu
B8 .25% iR > Mm@ A ®2,000,0007T &
A2 16.5% =R -

BEBERBETEMRSRE TRERBRE) K
TEMRBREBREG  KRmEEERN > HE

i ABBIMEKIGZ25% °

R T IEERBEERRBRPERE AR
REBFEZHATEER Gt FE T MIZER
Bt EEEZR30%EC0%EER X
ELEE MEETHINBERER) ©

REPHEEEMRESREZ BT NE—HF—
Ei’$lW%@TMﬁHﬁWZ/ﬂ% K
ZREHMIEINR - FEMBHRERL AR E
MEBABS R afsI B zEREZBRFHIEL
70 T8 £ 4 > 81 (R 2 £ [ AE 5 1 1) 85 [O] B B £
2B MERZEAEFEN A TER R R
[ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FrEMAX (&
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit 73’\ FARAZMEBAXEGESEDmRPANRIRA
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or WA Z HERWT ¢
loss as follows:
2020 2019
—EITF ZT—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TT
Profit before taxation BRI AT R A 7,292 138,961
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% A TS IR ER25%
(2019: 25%) (Note) TE—HF125%) 5TEZ
R 1a (5T 1,823 34,740
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RAHRAZ 2 RBEEE
for tax purpose 4,584 2,462
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  FEERFRURA Z IR FE 2 (107) -
Provision of PRC LAT for the year F A E I E R B 8,063 20,396
Tax effect of PRC LAT deductible for PRC EIT Bl B R PR IR IR
RE IR ER N BE R E (2,016) (5,099)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B FRiBERIES] ~ M IEEE (1,245) (226)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMEIEZERELEE Y
operating in other jurisdictions MEABSRRRE & 3,548 2,330
Income tax at concessionary rate REERIFEZMER (147) -
Income tax expense FrigMFsz 14,503 54,603

Note: The domestic income tax rate (which is PRC EIT rate) in the FIEE -
jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially
based is used.

K BIHBIBESRE) o

TIEIRIAF B E M EE29 ©

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 29.
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iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. &R (E18) &5
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging TR (EE) “FEHNRE GtA) U TFTRIE !
(crediting):
2020 2019
ZEITE T hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT
Directors’ remuneration (note 11a) E=H (fTsE11a) 7,592 7,946
Other staff costs HME T K 6,746 4,920
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RSB 861 898
15,199 13,764
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN = 1,201 1,190
Cost of properties held for sale recognised R ARINFEHEYER AL
as expenses (included in cost of sales) (Bt ASHE R ZS) 203,896 578,228
Cost of raw cane sugar recognised as expenses A5 B 2 IO JR AR AR AR
(included in cost of sales) GPUNEIE %Y 22,641 46,328
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) EEREE (hm) F5E 1,054 (12)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BB KRR EITE 838 961
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERESERE 1,210 810
Expense related to a short-term lease FEHEATE SRR 2 20 20
Expense related to lease of a low-value asset REEBEEHNEEMAX - 6

11. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 1. EF-FETHAERESME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () EEFERTFETBRASME

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight ERAdERNGMG(ZCE—AF L) ESEKkE

(2019: seven) directors and the chief executive were as ETBRAEBSZSNZMEWT :
follows:
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HnEs RUEdTES

Mr.POON M. CHAR
Mr. CHEN Mr. LAU Mr. LIU Mr. LIU LaiYin, ~ ShikNgor, ~ Mr. CHEN Ms. LI
Xian  Sai Chung Feng  Zhongxiang Michael Stephen  Weijiang  Jiansheng Total
RERE AtdxE  DEEE UBARE ARERE EHERE REIRE FRiWL st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARWTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note v) (note iii) (note iv)
(Mzv) (isii)  (iskv)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE-Z-F%+-A=+-H
LEE
Directors' fees BZi - - - - 152 152 152 - 456
Salaries and allowances HeREl 1993 1,804 2307 832 - - - - 6,936
1,993 1,804 2307 832 152 152 152 - 7392
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & f7&F st IR 50 50 50 50 - - - - 200
Total @t 2,043 1,854 2,357 882 152 152 152 - 7592
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

“EE+R=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 11. EF - FETHAEBREEMNE &
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () EFERIETHAEME &

(Continued)
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HiTEE BuksnEs
Mr.POON  Mr. CHAR

Mr. CHEN Mr. LAU Mr. Mr. LU Lai Yin,  Shik Ngor, Ms. LI
Xian  Sai Chung LIUFeng  Zhongxiang Michael Stephen Jiansheng Total
REZE AERRE  HBEE ATHAE FEERLE THARE TREWL it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR

(note v) (note iv)

D (Bissiv)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z-hE+ZR=1-H
LEE

Directors’ fees EEE - - - - 159 159 159 a7

Salaries and allowances HERER 1930 1,741 2,205 802 - - - 6,698

Discretionary bonus HBTEL 161 145 186 67 - - - 559

2,091 1,886 2411 869 159 159 159 1,734

Retirement benefits scheme contributions BABHEEIER 53 53 53 53 - - - M2

Total st 2,144 1,939 2,464 922 159 159 159 7,946

Notes: st -

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for (i) EXATRBAITES NS BEER AR A E
their services in connection with the management of the BEHEERBAM  EXMRBIUIFNITES
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent non- 2N EEEREAATESZREER
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(ii) The discretionary bonus was determined with reference to (ii) ZHBETCANK2EEE_S—hE+A=+—
the prevailing market conditions, corporate and individual HIEFEZRITmR m%&@)&fﬁ&%fﬁﬁ'ﬁ#
responsibility and performance during the year ended 31 TE ©
December 2019.

(iii) Mr. Chen Weijiang was appointed as an independent non- (iii) BREIAEN - 2F—F=HEZEAELRT
executive director of the Company on 3 January 2020. B IENITES -

(iv) Ms. Li Jiangsheng resigned as an independent non-executive (iv) FRELZIN - CZFE—B=HFEAREETL
director of the Company on 3 January 2020. FERITES

(v) Mr. Lau Sai Chung is also the chief executive of the Company v) M REE TR ARA B THAREL > LU PR 88 2 B
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services f:E’j%ET’EZ%FJBZ,.\%‘Aﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ&‘zﬁﬂi% °
rendered by him as the chief executive.

(vi) Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived or (vi) BHE TEERIE-AF+ZB=+—HILEF
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group during = @E#&Ex THAEREMNESRERRZNE
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. REBFTZ A Z (E RN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2019: four) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2019: one)
individual were as follows:

1. EBF FETHRAEREEME (&

(b) EEME

rEELRESMNEENALTH OR (ZF
—NE 0% RERBDZEFREZTHA
B REZMEER EXIH Rz —% (=
T-AF: - ANALTZMEWT :

2020 2019

—EBIEFE _—ZT-hE

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTFT ARBTT

Salaries and allowances e ROERL 1,003 967
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREFFHEIHRR 50 53
Discretionary bonus IBTEAL - 81
1,053 1,101

Emoluments of the five individuals with highest
emoluments including directors were within the following
bands:

TahEeMEENIALT (BREES) 2MEN
FLUTHER :

Number of individuals
(including directors and
chief executive)

BIHA (BREFK

FEITHAB)
2020 2019
ZEIRFE ZZTNEF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T ZE HH81,000,00070 - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 #1£1,000,001TE
H#1,500,0007T 2 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 A £1,500,001 7T E
&2 000,0007T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #i2 000,001 T E
B 1£2,500,0007T 2 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #1182, 500,001 E
A #3,000,0007T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

() No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

12. DIVIDEND

No dividends were declared and proposed by the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

13. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and dilutive (loss) earnings per

1. EBF FETHRAEREEME (&

0 BE_Z_ZFR_ZT-NE+_A
—+—HEFEE - xEBHERALXAFT
EEhFETHAESLEESHEE
AL A FARSIMAZIMAZ
EERZRENFERABRBME-

12. RE

REE_ZE_EFERKR_ZFE—HLE+_H
T+ —HIEEE > XA E SR & EIKE M
cE T BRESARETERHKEAHKE

13. &k (58 &7
FAREEANBEEREAREE (FB) B

share attributable to owners of the Company is based on T RBEATEIESHE -
the following data:
2020 2019
—EIEE —Z—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETr ARBTT
(Loss) earnings (8518) &#)
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of basic and MEtBEEREAKRIEE (518
diluted (loss) earnings per share ‘AME z (B8 &F]
— (loss) profit for the year attributable to —KABHEE ANELER
owners of the Company (&518) A (7,775) 74,184
(Restated)
Gs==pl))
Number of shares B &R
Weighted average number of share for the Mt ESREAREE (518
purposes of basic and diluted (loss) earnings BRI S Z 5 MiEFHH
per share 182,666,312 182,469,052

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
for both years presented has been adjusted for the share
consolidation effected on 20 October 2020.

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s options because
the exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price for shares for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out retail stores under operating leases
with rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 3 to 5 years, with unilateral rights
to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees
only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of the
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the
property at the end of lease term.

14. KBEYE

FEERBEECEHERALTEEHILISRA W
WS AEE-—RE3ESFERT BB L
EHE MABALEEVRHBRIEREES
WELEEFR - HABATEERERE K
DHEESNH AT BB FER -

AR ERENUEEERENMHEBINIERER
SHE X MAEBE Y ERNEE 25 mmEINE R
B-HEANLEHEERGEEERE K
BAREBEREREBEEYENERE-

2020 2019
—EBIEFE —E-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARBTT
FAIR VALUE NifE

At 1 January w—A—H 84,918 88,962

Decrease in fair value recognised RIBmEE 2 A R ER D
in profit or loss (10,518) (4,044)
At 31 December B+_B=+—H 74,400 84,918

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
of RMB74,400,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB84,918,000) have been arrived at on a basis of
valuation carried out by Norton Appraisals Holdings
Limited (2019: Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited), an
independent professional property valuer not connected
with the Group.

AEBREYENR _E_TE+"-_A=+—
BZAARBARY74,400,0007T (ZF—H
F£:ARMS84,918,0007) DEREAXE
BumBAEsBUEEYEGEMNorton
Appraisals Holdings Limited (Z&— .4 :
BT EENGBERAERAR) T2 HEE
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation.
Management works closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs and data to the model. Management reports
the valuation report and findings to directors semi-yearly
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the independent
property valuer adopted direct comparison approach
by making reference to comparable sales evidences as
available in the relevant market to reflect current market
conditions as of the end of the reporting period to arrive
the valuation of investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the independent
property valuer adopted the investment approach for
the properties which are currently held for earning rental
income and capital appreciation. The directors of the
Company decided to change the valuation techniques from
direct comparison approach to investment approach as
they are of the view that the adoption of these valuation
techniques can improve the relevance to the existing
conditions of investment properties held by the Group after
the renewal of the majority of tenancy agreements in the
current year and give a fairer presentation of the results
and the financial position of the Group.
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B-EEESYFRNESFERLERSRE
RUMBEEAAEBRBZRE -

BE_ZE—hhE+__A=+—HBLEEFEE B
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A RZAUERBESEE URMEER S
AKZBITHRUENKREYEEE

BE_ZE 25+ _A=+—HBLEEE B
MEGMEBEMMLEANFERNEASKARER
BEZYERBRELZ ARBDEFRAESME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the investment properties is
their current use. The fair values of certain investment
properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or
accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the key inputs
and data used in valuing the investment properties by the
independent property valuer under the aforesaid approach
was market observable transactions of similar properties.
A significant increase in the market transaction price
used would result in a significant increase in fair value
measurement of the investment properties, and vice versa.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fair values
of the investment properties were determined by the
independent property valuer by reference to capitalised
income to be derived from the tenancies and the
reversionary income potential of the properties or, where
appropriate, by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions.

The following tables give information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs and data
used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs and data to the fair
value measurements is observable.

14. BREWE &)

Fﬁﬂ&ﬁ%%Z@ﬁﬁﬁ REMEZRD
RREREARHEERMAR ETREVWENR
AEEERAE UHFGANHEF 2 KERE
WA BREESE-

BE_T-NF+_RA=1T—HILEFE - B
MELEMRBEMAD ZHREYEFETH
BERTERAZIZGAERMBERAELYEZ
TEIERXZ -MATEXZERBEL
RERREMEZARBHERNRBEMN K2
TRIR e

BE_ZT_ZHF+_HA=1T—HLFE KA
MEZRAABENHRBIYELEMSEFH
HEEENERTRARDEERTRAE DN
(MMER) 2EFMENERMUE RFMHFBLE
LEZRZEBEERNTHBRBEMEE

TRINTEMNPEELZSREDELAE
ZEHN (CERGHERMEAMBBAEBERH
B) URBEANESEFRMBRH AERBEDN
HREEDEZAREHEMBARESR
(F—REFE=MH) °
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“EE+R=+—HLFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. KREWE B
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-EHF+”"A=+—H
Significant unobservable inputs Range
Fair value Valuation techniques (relationship of unobservable (weighted
Category Fair value hierarchy and key inputs and data  inputs to fair value) average) Sensitivity
HERTREIEBAE  EXATTRZREAE (FIHR
=l RitE AREER  REE BAEEAREZRE (7J|]1E¥i‘lfﬁ) BRE
RMB’000
AEBFR
Retail shops 74,400 Level 3 Investment approach - Term yield (the higher the term 3.35% Aslight increase in term yield would
in the PRC B=H income capitalisation of yield, the lower the fair value) result in significant decrease in fair
RHBZZEE the net income and made TRl (BilmdEs 8 value, and vice versa.
provisions for reversionary NaEER) THkGREEERNAAEAR
income potential B RZT R
BREZE-ZFUANKAE
KERREFBAENIE
LR
Reversionary yield (the higher 5.0% A slight increase in reversionary
the reversionary yield, the yield would result in significant
lower the fair value) decrease in fair value, and vice
EHlE (ERKEES A versa.
NAEHR) ERW@RBERERAREAE
B RZ IR
Unit rent (RMB/square per ~ RMBAR&437C A significant increase in unit rent
meter per month) (the higher would result in significant increase
the unit rent, the higher the in fair value and vice versa.
fair value) BARSRBEMEERR A E
B¢ (BAARYT /T KIBEM > RZIRR
AR EfiffeHEs AR
EHs)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=+—H
Significant unobservable inputs Fair value
Fair value Valuation techniques (relationship of unobservable per square
Category Fair value hierarchy and key inputs and data  inputs to fair value) meter Sensitivity
REKTREIEBAE  EATTBERGAE (FTHRR ARME/
=l RitE AREZR  REE BABRAREZRR Ak BEE
RMB'000
ARETR
Retail shops 84,918 Level 3 Direct comparison method ~ Adjusted transaction price RMB  The higher the adjusted transaction
in the PRC B - based on market RHREZHE AR price, the higher the fair value and
ReEz ZEE observable transactions 21,0007 vice versa.

KRERZBYS AAREY
B RZTRe

of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the
conditions of the subject
property

ERLBE-EREMY
EZHBIBERZLF
LERR M RIRERNMEZ
Rt

BE_ZT_ZTFER_FT— jl$—|— A=+—
HEFE HMESANELSE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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A5 ER R MIEE

T-FF+_B=f—HILEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. YE - -BEKRRE
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Motor
buildings improvements  Equipment Furniture vehicles Total
etk
BF e R &R pal:d oz
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  ARETR ARETR ARETRT AREBTRT ARETR
cosT &
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—B—H 21,082 911 1,663 171 2,991 26,318
Exchange realignment EREE 373 16 45 1 - 435
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
+ZA=+-H 21,455 927 1,708 17 2,991 27,253
Exchange realignment ERHE (1,246) (54) 43) (5) - (1,348)
Additions hE - - 21 - - 21
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE
+-A=+-H 20,209 873 1,686 167 2,991 25,926
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RirE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—A—H 4,790 911 1,155 171 740 7,767
Exchange realignment ERHE 90 16 45 1 - 152
Provided for the year FREE 447 - 215 - 299 %]
At 31 Decernber 2019 RI2—NE
+-B=+-H 5,327 927 1415 172 1,039 8,830
Exchange realignment ERHEE (334) (54) (42) (5) - (435)
Provided for the year ENEE 451 - 88 - 299 838
At 31 December 2020 RIE_ZFE
+-A=+-H 5,444 873 1461 167 1338 9,283
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE
+-A=+-H 14,765 - 225 - 1,653 16,643
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NE
+-A=+-H 16,128 - 293 - 1,952 18,373
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking into account
their estimated residual values, at the following useful lives or
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the term
and buildings of the lease or 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term

of the leases or 5 years

Equipment 18% to 25%
Furniture 18% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10%

(b) The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong.

(@) Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate carrying
value of RMB14,765,000 (2019: RMB16,128,000) have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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15.

PIEE

ME- -BERRE (&

M E¥ZE - BB s TR R TS5t R B 515 &
BRZUTHERFRANFERUEREINE !

HE Lt IR F RS HE50F

UBEEATE)
fAERE BRI E5E
UBREEAE)
B 18%%E25%
RE 18%%E25%
RE 10%
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

=.AH
=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 E—

16. EFREEE

A5 ER R MIEE

%¢+:EE+—E¢EE

7_7

Leased Office
properties  equipment Total
HEME WMAIERE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-hF+-HA=+—H
Carrying amount FREE 1,550 23 1,573
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEHF+ZHA=+—H
Carrying amount RMEE 320 17 337
For the year ended BEZZ—hEF
31 December 2019 +ZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEER 793 17 810
For the year ended BE_ZTZHF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HLFE
Depreciation charge TEER 1,205 5 1,210
2020 2019
—_— v —_= ﬂi > _jlg
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AR®ETFT
Expense relating to short-term lease and other RERE RN S B BRE
lease with lease term end within 12 months R 5165414 FE B H HAE
of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 F2EERNGERZEMBEE
ERAR S 20 20
Expense relating to lease of low-value assets BEEEEE COERHREEES
excluding short-term of low-value assets ) HEEARX - 6
Total cash outflow for leases MERTMHARER 1,233 866
Addition to right-of-use assets ,/Jxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%éfé - 2,395
The leased properties and office equipment are depreciated MEMERRRAEXEEREG X ERHME

over the term of the relevant lease using the straight-line HAYT &8 o
method.
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, BHE_ZE_ZEFERE-—NFE+ZA=+—

the Group leases a staff quarter, car parking spaces and a
copier for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for original fixed terms ranging from 1 to 5 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

HEFE AEERHEEEHREEIES 7
BURZHME - HEGNTBNANFI1ESEFZ
JREIEF T IL - HERRIZE B B E bR
A B R A BR R AR M o B E B IR
R A HEHENRER  AEEERS
MBPERI EE G AR RE SNITBHRE -
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iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB361,000 (2019:
RMB1,612,000) are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of RMB337,000 (2019: RMB1,573,000) as at 31
December 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets cannot be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

“EE+R=+—HLFE

16. EFREEE (&
1A B PRI 5

s > R ZEZEFF+__B=+—H 5
BAR®K361,0000 (ZE—NEFE: AR
1,612,00070) 2 HE G BT %186 A #E
EEARK33I7,0000 (ZCE—HE: AR
1,573,00070) R - BREBAAFMBSHEEEEDN
IR R A > T & 15 58 0 A AE 00 AR T 2255 o
MEEEINSRIEER KRR

17. INVENTORIES 17. #&§
2020 2019
—ECEFE “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT
Raw cane sugar RS = 22,742

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development are classified as current
assets as the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be completed in the
normal operating cycle.

Properties under development substantially represent the
cost of the land situated at JIXIANG-23, Maoming Jixiang
District* (5545 #/\&)in the PRC (the “PRC Land").
As at 31 December 2020, properties under development
were not scheduled for completion within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.

Properties held for sale are situated on leasehold land in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at cost.

*  The English name is for identification purpose only

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE_— v_gfﬁﬂ'iﬁ —+—HILEFE

19. DEPOSITS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 19. #E HEIWERIERTEIRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETFT
Other receivables (Note 1) HihrEw s (fsE1) 24,914 14,759
Less: impairment losses recognised A BRESRERE (1,647) (448)
23,267 14,311
Deposits paid for acquisition of WeHE Tt RSz (ViR
land use rights (Note 2) (MF5E2) = 102,460
Deposits and prepayments & RFENRIE 3,337 2,093
26,604 118,864

Notes:

It includes loan receivables of RMB10,675,000 extended
to the buyers of properties. The amounts are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable within twelve months.

It represented deposits of RMB102,460,000 placed at
Maoming City Public Resources Trading Center* (&M /A Tt
EIRAZZH0) in respect of an acquisition of land use rights
of the PRC Land, which is used for property development
in the next few years. Such deposits were utilised upon
settlement of the remaining contract sum and transferred to
properties under development during the current year.

The English name is for identification purpose only

1, BEAYMEEIRTZEWRERAR10,675,000
Toe A RE N BRI RANR T EAANEE-

2. ISR A PE E 3t 2 Tt R R R A
BR3P OFEREZE AK102,460,0007T > &
REFEARYEER - RAFE BRZEER
BEERTENZERATEBEEERY X

Movements in impairment losses for other receivables are HMtEWRIBZ REGEESB &I T :
set out as below:

2020 2019
—_— v —_= ﬂi > _jlﬁz
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TFT
At 1 January T—H—H 448 429
Exchange difference bE 2 = 28 (37) 19

Impairment losses recognised under ECL model

RHEEBEENIA T EEEZ
BB R 1R

1,236 -

At 31 December

R+ZA=+—H

1,647 448

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are
set out in note 41.

HMEWRIE Z BEGEF BEHNME41-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20 B AREHABRHRZMBEE

2020 2019
—BIEF “ZT—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTTT AR®TT
Listed securities held for trading: FERZ 2 LhEs !
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZRAE 6,402 12

21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

The restricted bank deposit represents a guarantee deposit
for the construction of project required to be placed in a
designated bank account by the PRC Construction Bureau
of Maoming City. The amount will be released upon the
bank receiving the certificate of property ownership.

Restricted bank deposit carries interest at a market rate of
2.25% (2019: 2.25%) per annum.

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH AND BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB11,486,000
(2019: RMB31,285,000) have been pledged to guarantee
the mortgage loans granted by the banks to the customers
of the Group and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a market rate of
0.30% (2019: 0.30%) per annum.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.30% (2019: 0.01% to 0.30%) per
annum.

Bank overdrafts carry interest at overnight HIBOR plus 3%,
effectively at 3.04%, per annum (2019: N/A).

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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21. BRBIERITER

BERFIBRTERERFATERLTERE
EERTIRPFPABNRIEERZFAZERT &ZE
BERNIRITTWE EFr A RE R R -

ERGIIRTERETHEENEX2.25% (ZF
—LE I 2.25%) 5B o

22. EBEMRITER RITEERREU
RIR1TER

AEARM11,486,000T (ZE—HTF: AR
#31,285,0007) 2 BEFRITERE FIR
HOoMERETHAEBRERAREEZEEBE
FTORALEDEARBEE-

BHEFETERLTBEENEI30% (ZF
— L4 0.30%) st 2o

BITEEFERDEENERVI%E030% (ZF
—LE 0.01%%F0.30%) st B o

RIOTEBEXERBREEBRTEEREMERN X
3% (BEA3.04%) 572 (Z2—h&F . FE
) e
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F+TRA=1T—HLEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B RHMEMRE
2020 2019
ZEITFE Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT
Trade payables B SRR 388 32,485
Receipts in advance (Note) aUEE (st - 20,919
Value-added tax payable FEIEETR 41,910 34,750
Other tax payables HhfENIRIE 3,241 2,257
Other payables and accrued charges HtENRIBRESTE A 13,549 7,879
59,088 98,290

Note: It represented the receipts in advance from one customer
which the sale contract was concluded after the end of the

IE

corresponding reporting period.

Credit periods granted to the Group by suppliers range
from 0 to 180 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

ZEREDHWMT

MisE : IEHESNNERRERAREIIZAR—BER

HEBLTAEROEIBORZIEER-

RBREHAZESBRARBEZEZERES

2020 2019

—BIERF TB2NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTTT ARE®TT

Within 90 days CIE N 388 32,105
91 - 365 days 91E365K% - 29
Over 365 days HBiB365K - 351
388 32,485

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2. BHER

2020 2019

—EBIEF “TNF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AEBETT ARBTT

Receipts in advance for sales of properties & W) 2 TEGRIE 74,154 235,620
Receipts in advance for trading of raw cane sugar [RE1E & 5 BN FIE = 20,000
74,154 255,620

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB766,958,000.

Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the
Group's normal operating cycle.

Revenue recognised during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 that was included in the contract liabilities
balance at 1 January 2020 and 2019 amounted to
RMB161,466,000 and RMB645,611,000 respectively.

25. LOAN PAYABLES

Loan payables comprise:

(i) Loan payable to an independent third party
amounted to RMB8,420,000 (2019: RMB8,940,000)
which is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per
annum and repayable on 30 April 2021.

(ii) As at 31 December 2019, loan payable to China
Sugar Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the
Company, controlled by a director of the Company
of RMB5,449,000 which was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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RZE—-—NE—-A—B &HNERAARE
766,958,0007T °

FHRANERRNAEEZERKERNAR

BlE-

AR EZE_ZEFEE_E—-—HhE—HF—HH®
EHNEBBEGNEE _ESE_EFKE_Z2—1
F+_B=Z+—HEFEEEIKZD IS
ANE#161,466,000c & AR #645,611,000
5T o

25. FBIEM

BNEMRERE

i)y EBEN—%%2BILE=ZFEFTARE
8,420,000 (ZE—HhF : AR
8,940,0007T) * ZAEABIKMH T F
ME6RFE AR _E_—FMA
—t+HEE-

(i RZE—NAhE+_B=Z+—H E
KRB —REFEZEFHNZ2ARBDRE
FEHEXEEERADERA AR
5,449,00070 ZABAEEF - REX
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A5 ER R MIEE

F+TRA=1T—HLEFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. THE&®E
2020 2019
ZEITFE Z—hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: FENHEEEE !
Within one year —&FR 340 1,228
Within a period of more than one year but —FBREFBEMFIARE
not more than two years 21 361
Within a period of more than two years but MEBEBBALFAR™
not more than five years - 23
361 1,612
Less: Amount due for settlement with 2B B N EIERBE I RIE
12 months shown under current liabilities FrRsaEE iR (340) (1,228)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months P28 B & R 8RB ENFIE
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERENEEE TR 21 384

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities is 5.83% (2019: 5.83%).

HMEaEBERZMEFHIE
5.83% (ZZE—HF :583%)

EERMNER

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other REMERERIIEEBUIINERFEZ
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities MESEHEHNWT :
are set out below:
2020 2019
—BIEg _T—hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AR®TT
As at 31 December R+—_B=+—H 361 1,612
27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON- 27. FEIEERIMERERE

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts represent the advances from the non-
controlling interests in respect of acquisition of the PRC
Land which are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment term.

ZEMIRIE A B f B £ 2 I
mBRAERT RS BUTEBEEMH -
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z_Z&FFR



182

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

28. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

28. HIRIMIRITHE

2020 2019
—EBIEF “ZTNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Secured bank loans BIEFRITER
— Variable-rate borrowings —FEFIEER 9,150 1,776
Carrying amount repayable within one year* N —FNEEZREE" - -
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain HAAREREBHFREAER
a repayable on demand clause UTHIREEZRITEMN
(show under current liabilities) but repayable*: ZEREE (WABARIET
HIER) -
— within one year ——FR 865 1,241
— within a period of more than one year ——F BB BEMFEARE
but not exceeding two years 893 535
— within a period of more than two years —MEBRBRBBE AT
but not exceeding five years 2,806 -
— within a period of more than five years —HF%BAM 4,586 -
Amount shown under current liabilities WREBaEE NYRZ 58 9,150 1,776
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * ZEIBARESRBEERBEIE 2 s EEEH

out in the loan agreements.

The Group's variable-rate borrowings carry interest at
3-month HIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2019: 3-month

HIBOR plus 2% per annum).

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal

SHEo
REBZEHAEERDZ =B EFAIRIT
BEKFEMENEI.75% (ZE—HF . =@
BEBIRTRAERENMENZE2%) 5tE o

FEERBERERMNX (HTEERAHFX)

to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are SEWT :
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
ZEIEHE —E-NEF
Effective interest rate iR
— Variable-rate borrowings —FEFIEER 230%%F2.38%  3.56%%E5.12%

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. IRIEFRIA
2020 2019
—ECEFE —ENEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFTRT ARBTT
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEaE 34,224 40,599

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities RARREBFHREHE SEINEZIELER

recognised and movements thereof during the current and BHaEREZHNT
prior reporting periods:
Fair value
adjustments Change in
arising from  fair value of
PRC LAT properties  investment
provision held for sale properties Total
RBfE  REWMEZ
hELH  HEMEZ NRE
BEREE AAERE 2% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—A—H 1,374 (40,402) (16,813) (55,841)
Credit to profit or loss i EEEIN 351 13,980 911 15,242
At 31 December 2019 KIB—AE+ZR=t—H 1,725 (26,422) (15,902) (40,599)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss R (05 3 A (1,362) 5,371 2,366 6,375
At 31 December 2020 RZF_FF+A=+—H 363 (21,051) (13,536) (34,224)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB30,115,000 (2019: RMB35,096,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RN_E_ZEF+_A=+—H > xEBEXH
AREEE AR®30,115,0000 (ZE—H
£ ARM%35,096,0007T) &) BIEH R AK
MR —_EEF+_B=4+—8H" EEB’\ﬂEZE
BRI R AT FEAM WERZEHERESD
LL%RIE%TE (ZE—hEFE H\) o Fés%-i;ﬁt\ﬁﬁ
HR4E

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-FHFiR



184

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e IR R I EE

1174 AS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

“EE+R=+—HLFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g
Equivalent to
Number of HER
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
& BETT AREFTT
Ordinary shares of HK$1 sREBT
(2019: HK$0.10) each (ZZ—F . EH0.107T)
2EER
Authorised: BE
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 \_2 NE—-A—HK
—NWE+ZA=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000 281,070
Share consolidation (Note 1) fo \AT# (Pt5E1) (2,700,000,000) - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZEE+"A=+—H 300,000,000 300,000 281,070
Issued and fully paid: BIRESE !
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 E\—v —hWEF—B—Bk
—NWE+ZA=+—H 1,824,690,520 182,469 161,569
Share consolidation (Note 1) ﬁ% ‘AT?F ER (1,642,221,468) - -
Issue of new shares (Note 2) BT (F5E2) 72,000,000 72,000 60,588

At 31 December 2020 R_EZEFE+"A=+—H 254,469,052 254,469 222,157

Notes: Mk -

1. On 16 October 2020, the Company held an extraordinary 1. RIZZZE+HB B ARBETRERK
general meeting and approved the consolidation of every ten BUHERAATRAFEHREREEBE0.10
issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the TTRZEBBEITRABTEBREHARABREAF—
share capital of the Company into one consolidated share BERmEBE1.00TZzaHEBRm - RDEHINZ
of HK$1.00 in the share capital of the Company. The share ZTZFE+R - +HRBREN -
consolidation became effective on 20 October 2020.

2. On 2 September 2020, arrangements were made for a private 2. RIE2ZEFNAZH ARAN LR EHE

placement to an independent private investor of 72,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each in the Company at a price
of HK$1 per ordinary share after share consolidation (as
mentioned above) representing a premium of approximately
51.51% to the closing market price of the Company’s
ordinary shares on 29 December 2020. The placing was
completed on 30 December 2020. The proceeds were used to
pay part of property project development and construction fee
and to provide additional working capital for the Company.

These new shares were approved to issue at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 16 October 2020
and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on
30 November 2009 (the “Scheme”).

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the board of directors consider, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the adoption date and as at the
approval date of refreshment from time to time, excluding
for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.
The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and will not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (i) the average
of the closing price of the shares quoted on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the grant date and (iii) the closing price of the
shares on the grant date.

On 13 July 2017, the Company granted a total of
64,000,000 share options to subscribe for 64,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company to certain
eligible individuals without vesting conditions.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the number of share
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme is
64,000,000. No share option has been exercised under the
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

31. BRiEstE

ARBER_ZZENF+—RA=+HHEMHN—
sk (TXsr8)) o

ARBFRAEERSHEE (BEEFTLE
MEDABERRERAERFHEMRZE
EEEAREASZERNES FATES

EE B EHER - DIEE AR ® HE
mRE-ZER EBBH SEXFTEH A
MARRBHERD REBREUSEBERQF
i MERZ P B B ARSI 8IS 85 A
BEERRARER 2 EBRNEEITRE
Z10% (TP EEMIEENTEBREMEITH
KR RBEBERBEEXLATEFGTETE HF
AEERRTINEEZESE ((VEARTRMDH
H & > (ii)%’é?%ﬁwﬁﬁﬂé?ﬁﬂjﬁﬂﬁfaﬂﬁ@+

AREBBXFAARRKRMDFHERGE

(i) s e % tH B BRI B o

R _E—tEtHA+ =R ARBREEH
64,000,000 EEREFTETLEER AL
R EE64, 000 O0ORANBEREESRK
010 c 2 E@AR > WERBIEM-

RNRZE_EFER_E—HAhE+_B=+—
H >$E$§%5+§UEﬁwﬁmﬁiﬁﬁzﬁ%%%%&
H%64,000,0000 EHE_S_ZTEEK_FT
—hWE+ZB=+— EIJtEr; ZEtE/IE T
mEREETHE

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE EifEMARAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —ZF-FHFiR

185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
directors and employees during the year are as follows:

31.

mE

Number of
share options
FEREHE
Outstanding
at 1 January
2019,

31 December

MRS (@)
EN EEREERAZAATBREZ 2

Exercise price

Category of participants Date of grant 2019 and 2020 Exercise period per share
RZE—h&
—R—BUXK
—E-hER
k- ok .2
+ZR=+-H
SHEHR BB WARTE 1T BRITEE
HK$
BT
Directors 13 July 2017 45,000,000 13 July 2017 to 0.25
S “Z—+HtB+=H 12 July 2022
“T—tHF
tA+=H=®
_EITF
tHBA+=H
Employees 13 July 2017 19,000,000 13 July 2017 to 0.25
(=] “Z—+tHtB+=H 12 July 2022
Bt
tBA+=H=®
s TF
tB+ZH
64,000,000
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
its Hong Kong employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the subsidiaries
(the “Employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The mandatory contributions
from each of the Employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,500 per month. During the year ended
31 December 2020, a total contribution of RMB989,000
(2019: RMB956,000) was made by the Group in respect of
this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a state-
managed retirement plan for all its employees at a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees.
The state-managed retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired
employees. Under the state-managed retirement plan, the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
a total contribution of approximately RMB72,000 (2019:
RMB154,000) was made by the Group is respect of this
scheme.

32. EAREFFE
R

AEBLZHEAERESERTBEARGFELTRE
KPR ENREETE Bt E B
RAEHZHAE ABUZTAEE -RiEa
Bt SEFEMNBAS (X)) REE
ESRYRERBMREEZS %YWA (EER®
BIMERAEEEM) EHRFIEHR - BEKRE
BrzabMEARUE B B1,500TAR &
E_E_EF+_A=+—HILEE xAEH
FULST B ER 4B H AR #989,000t (Z &
—hE AR %956,0007T) ©

RE > RE RS

RIBFBENEAREREC TEHRB AT A
MAMMEEEMREZEREBRAEFNEE
Htm - R BEAEEELAFENETED
Lo EREREBHFEEEAFMBENRKEES
N EERKES AEEBEIREKREHNtE 2
T AREBREERRINFBHEMERENK
BT HWEBARBEFE LA E— T RKIEH
ECETEFE+_RBA=+—HIEEE K~EH
UL EEHABHEHFTOARKT72,0007T (ZF
—HhE  AR¥154,0007T) °
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33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group and to obtain the mortgage facilities provided

33. KREE

RBREMR *EBZETEEEFARTE
EERTEEZERANSTARERYES
FTESRHZZBNE (THFEERRITR
HIER) WH -

to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties for which
guarantees were provided by the Group to the banks as

follows:

2020 2019
—EZIEE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT

For banking facilities IRITIERME
Leasehold land and buildings HE T RET 14,765 16,128

For mortgage facilities IEIEHETZ
Restricted bank deposit BIRFIRITFR 22 896
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITEM 11,486 31,285
11,508 32,181

34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
DISCLOSURES

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

34. BAEFREBAEANLTIRE

BE_ZE_ KR _E—-—NhE+_BA=+—
HEFFE - EZLEMTESEERNEZMS
mr

Compensation of key management personnel FEEEEKE ZH M
2020 2019
—EIEFE —“T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Salaries and other benefits in kind HEMEMEYHN T 8,395 8,782
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIKERFHE AR 250 265
8,645 9,047

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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34. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Related party transactions and balance

Other than the disclosures in notes 11, 25 and 27, and the
amount due to a director disclosed on the consolidated
statement of financial position which is denominated in
HK$, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand,
there were no other significant related party balances or
transactions.

Continuing connected transaction and balances

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
purchased raw cane sugar from China Sugar Holdings
Limited, a shareholder of the Company, amounted to
UsD9,500,000 (equivalent to RMB65,619,000) (2020:
Nil). As at 31 December 2019, trade payables amounted
to RMB32,105,000 and loan payables amounted to
RMB5,449,000 respectively, which are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand are set out in notes 23 and
25 respectively.

35. COMMITMENTS

Operating leasing arrangements
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
RMB1,428,000 (2019: RMB1,668,000). The properties held
had committed leases mainly running for the three to five
years.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:

34. BAERKRMEALIRE (&

R X 57 RS ER

PREFEE11 25 R2TPAIREEZE RN G B R
MERBUBBHEAERT RERARE
KREBZENESNEN BEEAMEMEX
RIE S BRI S o

FHEMEXR 5 RASER

 E_E-NE+_BA=+—HLEEFEE &
EEBRAATRFTHABEEEE SR LADE
BREE ©%849,500,000% 7T (FBER A
K 165,619,0007m) (ZE_FF  #) - ¥
E-NE+_RA=+—H «BEIHAEHBARE
32,105,000 c & AR 5,449,000t E 5
ENHRERENERABERF - REKRBEX
EE > DRIE N MIsE238250

35. &g
ST E R HE

FEEES LN
RERERZMERSERABZARE

1,428,00050 (ZZ2— N F : AE®1,668,000
o) o P EZHEBTENF=ZFERAF

HERBKREREAESCROT :

2020 2019

“EIZF ZET-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®FT

Within one year —&ER 2,986 1,582
In the second year B 1,748 1,302
In the third year F= 657 390
In the fourth year FHHE 160 31
In the fifth year FREF 53 23
After five years hF% - 2
5,604 3,330
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Other commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the

35. &g (&
H iz

RBREMR  AEBRENE (CET—NEF

following capital commitments for development of WHEERE ) 2 EARREDT -
properties (2019: acquisition of the PRC Land):
2020 2019
—BIEg _T—NE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Contracted for but not provided in the BN ERBEASHMBRE
consolidated financial statements SRR 369,138 139,052

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
obligations in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
RMB163,165,000 (2019: RMB577,518,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to certain purchasers of the Group's
properties and pledged its bank deposits and properties
to the relevant banks. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalties owned by the defaulted purchasers
to the banks.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED HE Lifs&EmMARAR
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36. ABE

RIBE_BFE+_B=+—H AEEMEE
EYMECETERERH 2 HBERZES
SEHARBE163,165,00070C (ZE— L4 :
AR#577,518,0007T) ©

RBERR *EERETRITAOEERYE
ZETERRHZEBEMREHRER LEA
FIRTHRFEBRTERRYE - BREBEEFRE
PoMREERREEERBRIE AEAEER
BEEEENEBERRNBETZREEREBESR
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Under the above arrangement, the bank deposits were
pledged to the banks as securities on the mortgage loans.
Upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the bank deposits
and legal titles of properties and can realise the pledged
properties through open auction, or the banks transfer the
pledged properties to the Group, then the Group sell the
properties through open auction. The Group is obliged to
repay the banks for the shortfall if bank deposits and the
proceeds from selling the properties through the auction
cannot cover the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans, and ends upon
the earlier of (i) the issuance of real estate ownership
certificates to purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant properties; and (i) the settlement
of mortgage loans between the mortgage banks and the
purchasers.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant
at initial recognition and the directors consider that the
possibility of default of the parties involved is remote;
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception
of these guarantee contracts and at the end of the each
reporting period.

The Company engaged an independent professional valuer,
Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited to assess the fair values
of the financial guarantees of the Group and the directors
of the Company concluded that the effect is insignificant,
and accordingly, no provision for guarantee has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

36. TARE &

RBEXN L2 BEERITEREFERRIBEM
ZHERBERFRT - HZFERREEBERS
mE ARTTARBEBIRTER R ERETE
FROVAIEBAMMEZRITNYE > iR
TREPYEBETFTAER EMELERZSE
BARMEHEZSFYWE - HIRTERRIBE
HEVEFMBSREEZMEREEZRBE
TEREBFAMERIAR AAEBARIRTE
BE

AEBZEFRBERLERRBERE A
B EZEUTRERRERBES L (IBDEXRE
HEMEFMAERSE —MRNRERBEEHERDE
B—EMFEARFEL ; ROINGEBERIBRITEE
RZBENEBER-

EERR cEEZSMBTRERENZANE
ROFPEDEHMIRE BEEFBRITNES
B Z A NS B B EEENET L&
FRFENRFRNEREMARED

KRB ZAEBILEXEMGEEMNOrton
Appraisals Holdings LimitedsF 1 4s £ B B 75
BRZARE BAREESIARXELLE
RoFEIEBERA SR BRREDERERE -
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. XATEXEMBRBZHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 TECEFERIE-NFE+ZA=+—H
and 2019 are as follows: ZE&I‘H%’\ FHEEMNT
Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully
incorporation/  Class of paid capital/ Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operation shares held registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FX3L/
L ERTRARKE/
WEAERE BRME HERHERN ARER VNSRS 2oL 2t dan] TELH
2020 2019
—EC® —E-hE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# fitE E# ik
Techwayson Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% - 100% - Provision of management
Limited 54 EEk #110,0007T services
BURBREERRAR RULEERH
Techwayson Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100% - 100% - Trading of raw cane sugar
BEABZBRAT &8 ZER 10,0008 RRIEER
Maoming Huada Real Estate The PRC Contributed capital  RMB50,000,000 - 90% - 90% Development of real estate
Development Limited*# i EYN=V AR #50,000,0007T in the PRC
(“Maoming Huada") RHEZEREME
RETEARHEREBRAT
U5z2=N)
Maoming Shang Cheng Real The PRC Contributed capital ~ RMB30,000,000 - 65% - 65% Development of real estate
Estate Company Limited** ] FUN-EN AE%30,000,0007T in the PRC
(“Maoming Shang Cheng") RAEREBRENE
(Note)
KB LHEXBRAT!

(M L) ()
* RICATBEMER]

The English name is for identification purpose only

*
10

ZERBBRRERIZFIIEERE-

# These companies were established in the PRC as non-wholly
sino-foreign owned enterprises.

Mz R-Z—hE+—B-+tH8  2EWBATFY
BE LI E SRR AR ERMABIE=S
RIFERERB AR RS Ll S TERBEAA
F= #30,000,0007T © 5% M3 /& A B 75 Bt W B A B - 3t
EMI S BT AL ©

Note: On 27 November 2019, a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Maoming Shang Cheng, was established by a wholly owned
subsidiary, SFEIIEE B EEEIERRAE, together
with two independent third parties, with a total capital
injection of RMB30,000,000 contributed by all parties and
such subsidiary was established set up for the purpose of

acquiring the PRC Land for property development.
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised
as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

37. ZREEEMBRRZHE &

ERBINARAPDEEXR/IBRELERE
BHEEZAEBENBRAB AABDEERR
SILFFEMB AT ERKSREBN TR

BEE AN B QR EARFENEFANEAE
BAEERNAREERHERES-

REBESHR AR EHEAEEMEAABEEE
ZHMWHB AR ZSEWBRAAZHNETERK
PEEE ZEWBRARAZ T EXHH AL
T

Number of subsidiaries

FEEH FEEEME MEARHE
2020 2019
—BIEgF _T—hE
Investment holding Hong Kong 2 2
BEER BE
Investment holding The British Virgin Islands 1 1
REER REEURS
Investment holding The PRC 5 5
BREER alE
8 8
Inactive Hong Kong 1 2
mER BN
Inactive The British Virgin Islands 1 1
T HBREREHS
Inactive Cambodia 1 1
mER IR
Inactive The PRC 4 4
mER FRE
7 8
15 16
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

“EE+R=+—HLFE

38.

FEHERI M

TRINTEBEERFENERTZAERIFR

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BB AR ZzFMER !
interests:

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting Profit (loss)
Place of incorporation and rights held by non- allocated to Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary principal place of business controlling interests non- controlling interests controlling interest

FENMBEFRSREE AR TEZERGZ
WEARLE HREIREE LR ERRRAELD il (§548) FIEERIM RS

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIZE ZT-NFE ZZIEF ZEZ-hE IZBIEE ZTNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT
Maoming Huada The PRC
RBEKX HE 10% 10% 851 10,172 47,500 46,649
Maoming Shang Cheng The PRC
gt HE 35% 35% (287) 2 10,215 10,502
564 10,174 57,115 57,151
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's EEXREEFUEER 2 AEBRRBELAB 2
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests as set HBERBESHIWT -
out below.
2020 2019
—TEF = — L
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT AR®TT

Maoming Huada RBEK
Current assets MENE E 550,653 721,472
Non-current assets ERBEE 76,249 87,150
Current liabilities mEaE (117,678) (301,534)
Non-current liabilities ERBER (34,224) (40,599)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KBRS NEILER 427,500 419,840
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests FEIEFIME R (L R 47,500 46,649
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 E—

38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

g-:-A.

38. JEEEWIMER 2

A5 ER R MIEE

%¢+:EE+—E¢EE

7_7

(Continued)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETFT
Revenue g 247,878 756,487
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year £ A K 2 E UK i 48 28 8,511 101,724
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year Z&<A T A AFEMLE REF K
attributable to owners of the Company PHENELERE 7,660 91,552
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year JE4% I M4 4 %5 FE 45 4F POE ) K2
attributable to non-controlling interests ZHEINEELERE 851 10,172
Profit and total comprehensive income F R %U&i@ﬂ& mABEE
for the year 8,511 101,724
2020 2019
—BESF T—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AR®ETT
Net cash outflow in operating activities KSR FTAIR S R EEE (12,378) (58,495)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEEHMSRERAEEE 20,672 14,378
Net cash outflow in financing activities MEESFTARE ML FEE (6,000) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEMA Citt) B%8 2,294 (44,117)
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TEL-A=+—AILEE

38. JEEEHIMEDR 2

(Continued)
2020 2019
—BIEg _ZT—hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT
Maoming Shang Cheng X% L
Current assets MENEE 279,597 111,531
Non-current assets JERENEE 19 -
Current liabilities REEE (250,434) (81,538)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KABHER NEIEER 18,967 19,491
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests FEIEFIM R (L 10,215 10,502
2020 2019
ZEITE T hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®ETT
Revenue e - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FERNEE & 2 HH X 4858 (811) (7)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year &AA T HEE AEEEANBELREE
attributable to owners of the Company Bz 48 %R (524) (5)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FEIZHIMEZE(EENBENREE
attributable to non-controlling interests Bz 48 %R (287) )
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year SERES1E K& 2 M B2 4848 (811) 7)
2020 2019
ZEITF Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TFT
Net cash outflow in operating activities KRBT IR M B 48 (56,114) (102,428)
Net cash inflow from investing activities S ERBFISIRERAFRE 110 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities B REPTEIREMAFEE 71,506 111,499
Net cash inflow W& RAFEE 15,502 9,071
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. AAFMFFEIRAR
OF THE COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBFTRT AEBBTT
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RSB AR 2w 1,009,623 1,009,623
Amounts due from subsidiaries A EYNCIE O] 60,625 -
1,070,248 1,009,623
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables HhpE U EIa 171 490
Bank balances and cash RTEFERIRS 760 788
931 1,278
Current liabilities mENEaE
Other payables H{th e RIB 2,138 2,150
Amount due to a director EEERIE = 2,913
Loan payables FETEMR 8,420 11,277
10,558 16,340
Net current liabilities mEBEFEE (9.627) (15,062)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERREAEE 1,060,621 994,561
Non-current liability ERBAR
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI YNGR 822,599 850,499
Net assets BEEEE 238,022 144,062
Capital and reserves B RKiEE
Ordinary share capital =Bl 222,157 161,569
Reserves = 15,865 (17,507)
Total equity R 4NEE 238,022 144,062
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

39. ARBMBRKREX (&)

The movements in reserves are as follows: EZEHAOT
Share
Share  Contributed options  Translation ~Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
i aE MARE  BRERE ER R BB gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR AREFR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
(Note)
(M)

At 1 January 2019 RZ2-nE-A-H 578,990 67,614 5,481 (43,726) (592,368) 15,991
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (18,513) (18,513)

Exchange difference arising on translation RUESBREAZTIEHM
of functional currency to presentation currency EEVERER - - - (14,985) - (14,985)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FNEAESAE - - - (14,985) (18,513) (33,498)
At 31 December 2019 R-F-AF+-AZt-H 578990 67614 s4gl (871) (61088 (17,507
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (17,440) (17,440)

Exchange difference arising on translation BUEERIAEAZIEEM
of functional currency to presentation currency EEZERER - - - 51,262 - 51,262
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year FR2ENE B2 48 - - - 51,262 (17,440) 33,822
Transaction costs directly attributable to issue of new shares {TH RN EREEZZMA (450) - - - - (450)
At 31 December 2020 WZE-ZE+-A=+-H 578,540 67,614 5,481 (7,449) (628,321) 15,865

Note:  Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 2001

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include loan payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, amount due to a director and secured
bank borrowings, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

40. BEFXEREER &

EEEMRSBEARB -FRZ BT Z—8F
DO EBEFERELANAREAKBELSARHZA
B RBEFZHERR FAEBERZEBRIKM
RE-HRETRROBEUKRETHESN
BOREEBTHHEBRERRBE -

41. BIFEIA
(a) BT EZER

2020 2019
—ECEFE “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTT

Financial assets HREE

FVTPL BRAREST ARG
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BEEANBESABRTE

— Held-for-trading —F1ERZ 6,402 12
Financial assets at amortised cost BRI A B EEE 112,623 109,800
119,025 109,812

Financial liabilities BEasE
At amortised cost YR 5 Al A 124,336 93,616

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, restricted bank
deposit, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, loan payables, amount due
to a director, amounts due to non-controlling interests,
secured bank borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with the Group's financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(b) MBEBREEZEBRKRER

AEBEZIBYHF I AGFHMBKRARIE
BARESABa Y BEE -BRHIRTHE
POEBEBRTER-RTEFRREE - ES
REMEBMARE-BANER - BAHESFHE
IR ERIEEmRIE s B IRFIRTERAR
TEZ - WHBITAZFBENSHEAMERE-
ERcEEFBIAZARGEHRHRR (7
KEREKRAERRR) - EERRRABE
TR MEIREZF R BRI W T -
EEEBSEEZT ARKE  BERERA MM
BREERK-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to loan payables and lease liabilities. The Group's
loan payables carry fixed contractual interest rates while
the lease liabilities carry fixed incremental borrowing rates,
and therefore expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The carrying values of the loan payables and
lease liabilities which are classified as financial liabilities
at amortised cost are affected by the change in market
interest rate. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to restricted bank deposit,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, variable-rate
bank borrowings and bank overdrafts. Interest rate risk is
managed by the management on an ongoing basis with
the primary objective of limiting the extent to which net
interest expense could be affected by adverse movements
in interest rates. Interest rate risk on bank deposits is
considered immaterial and therefore has been excluded
from the sensitivity analysis below.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
borrowings and bank overdrafts at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2019: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel. Restricted bank deposit, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as
the directors of the Company consider that the exposure
of cash flow interest rate risk arising from them is
insignificant.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019: 50
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
decrease/increase by RMB56,000 (2019: RMB7,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
equity investments measured at FVTPL which are quoted
in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
management will monitor the price movements and take
appropriate actions when it is required.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period. If the prices of the respective
equity investments had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would increase/decrease by RMB535,000 (2019:
RMB1,000) as a result of the changes in fair value.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model under application
of HKFRS 9 on other receivables individually. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

41. BMEITH#E
(b) HFEREEEEEREE (&

HE% 5

FAEERHENRABREABKRERAAES
AfBm qugZHleK&ﬁ(ﬁA*%HﬁﬁA“%Fﬁﬁ
RAB®RE) EEEREZEBREL W
FERRNEETH-

LTS REIWREBERBRSHEREERNRKR
AERBEGET MEMREAKREEBR LA
TEE10% (ZE—HNF 1 10%) " HE_Z—
EE+_HA=Z+—HILEEENKRREZMNF
RAAnBEESmEM, B ARH#5350007T
(ZZE—HhE: AR®E1,0007T) ©

EE R R BT

R B _EFEF+_RA=+—H HBERXZHA
REBTER FEEBEHERGEY BRI
RPN TRZEMEREYHFEEREDEMNE
ERHBAEEBREUHFFRRZEREERR

HEBEERR AEEEEBREMLEER
TEEEEEERE - FEMARRAEMERE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

41. BMEITH#H)
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

1R R I E G

FEBNRNEEERBRRIFLEEFEATD

8

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description other items

A ERE E5T 4R ik HithsEE HittEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does 12-month ECL
not have any past-due amounts

KRR R 7 HELNRERRE > B S rEEAmRIE 128 B FEE &8

Medium risk There have been significant increases in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
since initial recognition and had past-due amounts
but have been settled subsequently

hER BYF AT EEREREXNEEM BEARE 2HEBREESEKEREE
M BERHRBIEE BE

High risk There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
impaired

=R BREBRABECHRESHE EHEMEEHRE—EERIE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

g BERBERAEFZABARENBHRE MAEEH SHEMHE

BER LEAREIRIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group's other receivables, restricted bank deposit, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are subject to ECL

41. BMEITH#E
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

5B E G ()

TRFLAEBEMBWRRIA - BRFETHE
FoBHHEBTERKRRITESF (BB ETE
HEEBENMGL AFEERZEERR :

assessment:
External Internal
credit credit 12-month or Gross
Notes rating rating lifetime ECL carrying amount
NEE REMER 2EAN
Wiz TR TR 2RBEEER HARE(E
2020 2019
B8 “ThE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFRT  ARETR
Financial assets at BRI EZ
amortised cost HBEEE
Bank balances RITET 22 Al-Bal N/A 12-month ECL 77,830 63,507
TBR EREHREERE
Restricted bank deposit  BFRBISR{THEM 21 A2 N/A 12-month ECL 2 896
TER  1ERRHEEFE
Pledged bank deposits BIEFRITER 2 A1-A2 N/A 12-month ECL - 11,486 31,285
TER  12ERBHEESE
Other receivables EftERE 19 N/A Lowrisk ~ 12-month ECL - 23,840 14311
TER BRE  12EARBEERE
Medium risk  lifetime ECL 663 -
PEEB (ot credit-impaired)
SHRBEEEE
CREREERE)
Highrisk ~lifetime ECL an 448
BER  (creditimpaired)
SHEBLENE
(E&HE)
Other items BEMEH
Finandial guarantee MBREEK 36 N/A Lowrisk ~ 12-month ECL 163,165 577,518
contracts (Note) (Przh) TNER HER 12BARHEERSR

Note:

For financial guarantee contracts,

the gross carrying amount

represents the maximum amount the Group has guaranteed
under the respective contracts.

st : MMBERSOMS  QREEESEERESS
NEERNERSREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE_E_ZFF+_HA=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances, restricted bank deposit and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risks on bank balances, restricted bank
deposit and pledged bank deposits are limited because
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other receivables

For other receivables under 12-month ECL and under
lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired), the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The other
receivables mainly represent loan receivables, the advance
payment of project cost and advance payment to staff
for business purpose which are not past due and with
settlement during the year. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the directors of the Company believe that
there is an increase in credit risk of these amounts due to
greater financial uncertainty triggered by the Coronavirus
pandemic, a further impairment of RMB1,236,000
was made. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
directors of the Company believe that there was no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition. The Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables as insignificant and thus no loss allowance was
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Other receivables (Continued)

For other receivables under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
which are past due more than five years and considered as
default and irrecoverable. The directors of the Company
believe that other receivables are credit-impaired and
the loss allowance was recognised before 1 January
2019. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group did not reclassify any other receivables from
12-month ECL to lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) as there is
no evidence concluding the other receivables as default
and irrecoverable and thus no further loss allowance was
recognised under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired).

Financial guarantee contracts

The credit risk of financial guarantee contracts are limited
as any default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the bank deposits
and legal titles of properties and can realise the pledged
properties through open auction, or the banks transfer
the pledged properties to the Group, then the Group sell
the properties through open auction. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition. For
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
assessed the ECL for financial guarantee contracts as
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

41. BMEITH#E
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

FEEER BTG (&)
HthfEWHE (&

MEMEBEEFE (EERE BFNEY
RURER S > 252 B ESANER
B BRABKEFAIRE - ARAAEER
BOR-F—AE—A—B 2 HMEER
BRRESHE FREESTURR -BE
“E-EER-E-AE+_B=+—AL
£ 0 B P00 9 30 B 4 R PR ORI 4 e
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2EAEBEEFEESHHEA2BES
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HEBERSH

HRMEE D HREAZRBAREN  RITAR
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movements in 12-month
ECL and lifetime ECL that has been recognised for other

41. BMEITH#E
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

FEEER BTG (&)

TREHBRFE KRG EESD B EME WA
WI2ER R EEREREHRAREERE

receivables under the general approach. Z&Fo
Other receivables Bt fEW=E
Lifetime ECL
S HATEHRAE EG18
12-month (not credit- (credit-
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
12EA R CRHREE
EEEE VEREY (EERB “ast
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARBFTT AR®ETT
At 1 January 2019 n_Z—h&E—H—H - - 429 429
Exchange adjustments PE % - - 19 19
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—hEF
+-—B=+—H - - 448 448
Exchange adjustments PE R A - - (37) (37)
Impairment losses EERERE
recognised 1,098 138 - 1,236
At 31 December 2020 AT
+-B=+—H 1,098 138 411 1,647
Liquidity risk B E 2 E R

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity
for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate at

41. BMEITH#E
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

TEEEmE (&)
T EE R

TERFIAEBIIETEMFTEGHNGOEH
BR-ZFNERBREBEFIEEIRERERN &
FERRVBERRLFEREAEBFEMR
Bk o ELfthIE 07 £ B4 F5 & B2 HA B 75 1R 45 PR 1
EEREHME °

TEREAMEARASRSHE RIS RES
FHEEMAR T KRB RS HE
SEIESRE

the end of the reporting period.

Carrying
Weighted ~ On demand Total amount at
average  or less than 3 months 1 year to 2to5 undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1year 2 years years cash flows 2020
RZEZZE
REXH FURRE +-A=+-H
mEFSHE  ORZER =ZERE-& —E£EWME  WEERE mERE ZIREE
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR AREFT ARBTn ARETR  ARETRD
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTE£ AR
Trade and other payables B REMENTE N/ARER 11,103 = = = 11,103 11,103
Amounts due to a director ENESHE N/ARER 6,624 - - - 6,624 6,624
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  E{S E #2514 i 7B N/ATER 85,000 - - - 85,000 85,000
Bank overdrafts RITEX 3.04 4,039 - - - 4,039 4,039
Secured bank borrowings BRARTER
~ variable rate —REHE 230 9,150 - - - 9,150 9,150
Loan payables EE 6.00 - 8,673 - - 8,673 8,420
Lease liabilities HE&R 5.83 255 91 9 14 369 361
Financial quarantee contracts HHEREY N/ARER 163,165 = = = 163,165 =
279,336 8,764 9 14 288,123 124,697
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41.
(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

41. BMEITH#H)
(b) HERMRESEEERKE (&

TEEEmE (&)

RBEE REIHT (B

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average or less than 3 months 1 year to 2t05  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 2 years years cash flows 2019
RIZ-N&
BEXE KERERE +°A=T—H
mETERE  DRZER Z@ERE-F  —FEMF  WEELA RERE ZHEEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETR  ARETr  ARBTrn  ARETR  ARETD
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTE M &E
Trade and other payables &5 REMENTE NATER 58,318 - - - 58,318 58,318
Amount due to  director ENESHE NATER 3,139 - - - 3,139 3,139
Amounts due to non-controlling interests {3 I 514 iR FE NATER 15,994 - - - 15,994 15,994
Secured bank borrowings BREMBEOER
- variable rate —REHE 400 1,776 - - - 1776 1,776
Loan payables EE 3.70 5,450 9,207 - - 14,657 14,389
Lease liabilities BE&R 5.83 333 956 386 25 1,700 1612
Financial quarantee contracts HHEREY NATER 577,518 - - - 577518 -
662,528 10,163 386 25 673,102 95,228

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
RMB9, 150,000 and RMB1,776,000 respectively. Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
ten years (2019: two years) after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out
in the table below:
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

41. BMEITH#E
(b) BFEEBEEEERBE (&

B EZEE ()
RE)ETRE T (B

Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average 1 year to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate  Within 1 year 2 years 2to 5 years 5 years cash flows 2020
RIBZEE
KURRE +-A=1+-AH
MEF 57| —ER —EERE MEELE AENE WELE ZHREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Non-derivative financial FiEHBaR
liabilities
Secured bank borrowings BRBRITER
~ variable rate a1 ik 230 1,065 1,065 3,195 4,791 10,116 9,150
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average 1 year to 2 years to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate Within 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows 2019
RIB—N&E
*BERE +ZA=1-H
METER= —FR —FEME MEERE TEYNE MERE ZRAEfE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Non-derivative financial FEMBERE
liabilities
Secured bank borrowings BRBRITER
- variable rate L il 4.00 1,295 540 - - 1835 1776

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to
change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

T EERENOFMEBENETBEARERR
ﬁ#ﬁ%%%#ﬁ%ﬁ(h#ﬁz X 5 ¥ 5 AR
Rz UEREREBENNRS B -RE
%ﬁ%%%Zﬁﬂ’Kﬁﬂ %ET%H%W
BEERZTH I EAEIE - AT > th{d 5 0 8E
BRSNS BURR R 7575 AEFE 2 BH# R
MEERRBESEEFEEMBEERER
Z Al BEME ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 EE—

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis using
prices from observable current market transactions. The
directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.

(d) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

One of the Group's financial assets is measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table provides an analysis of financial instrument that is
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable.

“EE+R=+—HLFE

41. BMEITH#E
(0 2AnE

MBEERVBEENAREBETRE QRN
TERARERFIREENTERS ZEBRIU
MBS RENNE] ZEFRR NG
?%i&i%%Wﬁﬁuuxﬂﬁﬂﬁ%&,éf)%&ﬂﬁ%&%faﬁﬁﬁﬁ

HEAREBEMESE-

(d MBIRZAREFE

FAEBZEP-BUFEERBSHRRELQ
REFE - TREIHUHBITEZ oM HHR
NMTEIBBREAAREAELRBETHERLR
BIABE—HREB=R-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1 B B=H st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT NS AR®TFT
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZZFE+ZR=+—H
Financial assets at FVTPL BARESAEGZHBEE 6,402 = - 6,402
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+ZBA=+—-H
Financial asset at FVTPL GARES ARG BEE 12 - - 12
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during FPREFEFE F—HREF_R2ELBmEE-

both years. The fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL is
from quoted bid prices in an active market.
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iR ISR AR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 i ZE_ZE_ZTF+_F=+—HIEFE

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

42. RMETBFFEEREZHER

TEFINAEERETHMELEEGZE
o UERERIFRSEH RETHAMELE
BEREREAECARKRBEEARENTE
ERoRERBERNDEAMETHEERE
Zz8f&-

activities.
Amounts Interest
due to payable
non- Amount (included
Lease Loan  controlling due to in other
liabilities payables interests adirector  Borrowings payables) Total
fEft FEfFIE
FREEHIM S EftES (FtAEA
HEsR &R ] ] EEN FEf5E) Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETT ARETr  ARBTR ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—F-H - 33,225 - 2,862 11,776 88 47,951
Financing cash flows BERSTE (840) (19,426) 15,994 26 (10,058) (1,083) (15,147)
Foreign exchange translation ExnE (1) 590 = 51 58 (34) 664
Interest expenses FIERE 58 - - - - 1,083 1,101
New lease entered MmEIHE 2,395 - - - - - 2,395
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE
+-B=1+—H 1,612 14,389 15,994 3,139 1,776 54 36,964
Financing cash flows HERERE (1,213) (5,449) 69,006 3,660 8,183 (771) 73,416
Foreign exchange translation ExHE (97) (520) - (175) (809) B3) (1,604)
Interest expenses MERZ 59 - - - - m 830
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEE
+ZB=1—H 361 8,420 85,000 6,624 9,150 51 109,606
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Schedule of Properties

YIEBE R

At 31 December 2020 R_E_ZEF+_H=+—H

A. PROPERTIES IN THE PRC A, (IRHPEZME
Stage of
development
Group's & Date of
Location Usage Area Lease term interest Classification Completion
KEE RERRR
bk B#& il THEH i 8 TIHH
Portion of Maoming Project, Commercial Gross floor area - Medium to 90% Completed, 2016
Zhangian 7th Road, approximately long term investment
Yuehua East District, 4,000 sg. m. properties
Maoming
2Rl T [ES BEEER- FHE RS 90% Bemk “ERE
BERE #94,000 75 K =L/
KeBEEZHD
Zhangjian 7th Road, Commercial and Gross floor area -~ Medium to 90% Completed, 2016/2018
Yuehua East District, residential complex  approximately* long term properties
Maoming 245,000 sq. m. held for sale
E 2 Y- (g HEKAEERER HRERR- HHERH 90% Byl HE _i—/\ﬁ/
BERE #7*245,000F 5 kS —N\F
VN
JIXIANG-23, Jixiang District, Commercial and Gross floor area -~ Medium to 65% Under- N/A
Maoming residential complex ~ approximately* long term development
118,000 sg. m.
REMEHFNEBIXANG-23 BERAERAE HBREER- RHAE D 65% BRE TER
49%118,000 5
VN
* Including sold and unsold portion. * BIEEERRELD
B. PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. MINREBEBZME
Approximate Lease Group's
Location Usage saleable area term interest
TEH
bk ithas BMAaRHERR HEH it
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, Office premises — Own use 242 sq.m. Medium 100%
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon.
NEERDIBBREOFMABRL—HISBI01E BFEYE—8R 202F K i HA 100%
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